








December 3, 2019 Planning Commission Meeting Minutes Page 1 of 4

CITY OF ELKO
PLANNING COMMISSION

REGULAR MEETING MINUTES
5:30 P.M., P.S.T., TUESDAY, DECEMBER 3, 2019

ELKO CITY HALL, COUNCIL CHAMBERS,
1751 COLLEGE AVENUE, ELKO, NEVADA

CALL TO ORDER

Jeff Dalling, Chairman of the City of Elko Planning Commission, called the meeting to order at
5:30 p.m.

ROLL CALL

Present: Evi Buell
Gratton Miller
Ian Montgomery
Jeff Dalling
Stefan Beck
Tera Hooiman

Excused: John Anderson.

City Staff Present: Scott Wilkinson, Assistant City Manager
Cathy Laughlin, City Planner
Michele Rambo, Development Manager
John Holmes, Fire Marshal
Shelby Archuleta, Planning Technician

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

COMMENTS BY THE GENERAL PUBLIC

There were no public comments made at this time.

APPROVAL OF MINUTES

November 5, 2019 – Regular Meeting FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

***Motion: Approve the November 5, 2019 minutes as presented.

Moved by Evi Buell, Seconded by Tera Hooiman.

*Motion passed unanimously. (6-0)

I. NEW BUSINESS

A. MISCELLANEOUS ITEMS, PETITIONS, AND COMMUNICATIONS



December 3, 2019 Planning Commission Meeting Minutes Page 2 of 4

1. Review, consideration, and possible recommendation to City Council for Vacation
No. 12-19, filed by the Ellison Properties, for the vacation of a portion of the Front
Street right-of-way, consisting of an area approximately 1,926 sq. ft., and matters
related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

The subject property is located generally south of S. 5th Street and east of the
terminus of Front Street. (404 S 5th Street- APN 001-422-002)

Cathy Laughlin, City Planner, explained that the Commission heard this item last month. The
Display Map and Legal Description from last month included the area to the back of the
sidewalk. The Commission made a condition to make sure that no NDOT right-of-way was
being included in the vacation. Staff felt it was a significant enough change in the square footage
to have the item heard again. The new display map and legal description was included in the
packet. Ms. Laughlin then went over the City of Elko Staff report dated October 24, 2019. Staff
recommended conditional approval with the conditions and findings listed in the Staff report.

Michele Rambo, Development Manager had no comments or concerns.

John Holmes, Fire Marshal, had no comments or concerns.

Scott Wilkinson, Assistant City Manager, had no comments or concerns.

***Motion: Forward a recommendation to City Council to adopt a resolution, which
conditionally approves Vacation No. 12-19 subject to the conditions listed in the City of
Elko Staff Report dated October 24, 2019, listed as follows:

1. The applicant is responsible for all costs associated with the recordation of the
vacation.

2. Written response from all non-City utilities is on file with the City of Elko with
regard to the vacation in accordance with NRS 278.480(6) before the order is
recorded.

3. A water line easement for the existing water line that bisects the area proposed for
vacation must be approved by the City and recorded.

4. Existing sidewalk connecting Front Street and South 5th Street must be demolished
and reconstructed in accordance with plans submitted and approved by the City.

Commissioner Buell’s findings to support the recommendation were the proposed vacation
is not in strict conformance with the City of Elko Master Plan Land Use Component. The
proposed vacation is in conformance with the City of Elko Master Plan Transportation
Component. The property proposed for vacation is not located within the Redevelopment
Area. The proposed vacation is in conformance with NRS 287.479 to 278.480, inclusive. The
proposed vacation, with the recommended conditions, is in conformance with Elko City
Code 8-7. The proposed vacation will not material injure the public and is in the best
interest of the City.



December 3, 2019 Planning Commission Meeting Minutes Page 3 of 4

Moved by Evi Buell, Seconded by Tera Hooiman.

*Motion passed unanimously. (6-0)

2. Review, consideration, and possible recommendation to City Council for Vacation
No. 11-19, filed by the City of Elko, for the vacation of a portion of the Commercial
Street right-of-way adjacent to APN 001-343-008, consisting of an area
approximately 100 sq. ft., and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

The subject property is located generally on the south corner of the intersection of 6th

Street and Commercial Street. (592 Commercial Street- APN 001-343-008)

Ms. Laughlin explained that the City Council made a motion to vacate the encroachments into
Commercial Street at their meeting on September 24, 2019. They referred the matter to the
Planning Commission. The City Council talked about reaching out to this property owner to see
if they wanted to be included in the vacation process, because this specific property does not
have an encroachment. Staff reached out to the property owner several times, and finally heard
back from her and she stated that she wanted to be included in the vacation process. Ms.
Laughlin then went over the City of Elko Staff Report dated November 18, 2019. Staff
recommended conditional approval with the findings and conditions listed in the Staff Report.

Ms. Rambo, Mr. Holmes, and Mr. Wilkinson had no comments or concerns.

***Motion: Forward a recommendation to City Council to adoption a resolution, which
would conditionally approve Vacation No. 11-19 subject to the conditions listed in the City
of Elko Staff Report dated November 18, 2019, listed as follows:

1. Written response from all non-City utilities is on file with the City of Elko with
regard to the vacation in accordance with NRS 278.480(6) before the order is
recorded.

Commissioner Buell’s findings to support the recommendation were the proposed vacation
is in conformance with the City of Elko Master Plan Land Use Component. The proposed
vacation is in conformance with the City of Elko Master Plan Transportation Component.
The property proposed for vacation is located within the Redevelopment Area. The
proposed vacation is in conformance with NRS 278.479 to 278.480, inclusive. The proposed
vacation with the recommended condition is in conformance with Elko City Code 8-7. The
proposed vacation will not materially injure the public and is in the best interest of the
City.

Moved by Evi Buell, Seconded by Tera Hooiman.

*Motion passed unanimously. (6-0)

II. REPORTS

A. Summary of City Council Actions.



December 3, 2019 Planning Commission Meeting Minutes Page 4 of 4

Ms. Laughlin, reported that the City Council, on November 26th, approved Resolution 30-
19, which was for the sale of some land that is part of Mountain View Park. Koinonia has
purchased the adjacent property for a Town Home development. The City of Elko in is
the process of selling a sliver of land to them. Now the deed and the Boundary Line
Adjustment will need to be completed. Resolution 29-19 was also approved for the
rezone for Elko West Properties across from the Hospital.

B. Summary of Redevelopment Agency Actions.

Ms. Laughlin reported that there was a Redevelopment Agency meeting on November
12th.  RDA approved authorization for the Agency to apply for a grant with NV Energy to
underground some overhead utility lines that run along the alley between 4th and 5th and
Silver and Commercial Streets. The deadline for that application is December 15th.

C. Professional articles, publications, etc.

1. Zoning Bulletin

D. Miscellaneous Elko County

E. Training

Ms. Laughlin announced that Ian Montgomery has submitted his letter of resignation
from the Planning Commission. Staff greatly appreciated his time and service. We will be
taking that to City Council on December 10th for them to accept his resignation and
authorize staff to advertise for the vacancy.

COMMENTS BY THE GENERAL PUBLIC

There were no public comments made at this time.

NOTE: The Chairman or Vice Chairman reserves the right to change the order of the agenda
and if the agenda is not completed, to recess the meeting and continue on another
specified date and time. Additionally, the Planning Commission reserves the right to
combine two or more agenda items, and/or remove an item from the agenda, or delay
discussion relating to an item on the agenda at any time.

ADJOURNMENT

There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned.

Jeff Dalling, Chairman Tera Hooiman, Secretary



Agenda Item # I.A.1 

Created 12/6/2019 

Elko City Planning Commission 
Agenda Action Sheet 

 

1. Title: Review, consideration, and possible action on Conditional Use Permit No. 11-

19, filed by Kelly Builders LLC, which would allow for a townhome development 

within an R (Single Family and Multi-Family Residential) Zoning District, and 

matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION 
 

2. Meeting Date: January 7, 2020 

 

3. Agenda Category: NEW BUSINESS, PUBLIC HEARINGS 

 

4. Time Required: 15 Minutes 

 

5. Background Information: Within the R- Residential Zoning District, townhouses are 

allowed with the approval of a Conditional Use Permit. 
 

6. Business Impact Statement: Not Required 

 

7. Supplemental Agenda Information: Application, Staff report 

 

8. Recommended Motion: Conditionally approve Conditional Use Permit 11-19 based 

on the facts, findings and conditions as presented in Staff Report dated December 9, 

2019 
 

9. Findings: See Staff Report dated December 9, 2019. 

 

10. Prepared By: Cathy Laughlin, City Planner 

 

11. Agenda Distribution:  Kelly Builders LLC. 

209 Raptor Court 

Elko, NV 89801 

 

Lana Carter  

lanalcarter@live.com 

 

 

 





Page 1 of 6 

 

 

 

CITY OF ELKO STAFF REPORT 

 
DATE:     December 4, 2019 

PLANNING COMMISSION DATE: January 7, 2020 

AGENDA ITEM NUMBER:  I.A.1 

APPLICATION NUMBER:  Conditional Use Permit 11-19 

APPLICANT:    Kelly Builders, LLC 

PROJECT DESCRIPTION: Development of 10 Townhomes 

RELATED APPLICATIONS: TM 13-19 

  

A Conditional Use Permit for the development of 10 townhomes within the R – Single 

Family Multiple Family Residential Zoning District. 

 

 
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

 

RECOMMEND APPROVAL, subject to findings of fact and conditions as stated in this report. 

City of Elko  

1751 College Avenue 

Elko, NV  89801 

(775) 777-7160 

FAX (775) 777-7119 



CUP 11-19 
Kelly Builders, LLC 

APN: 001-530-026 

 

  Page 2 of 6 

PROJECT INFORMATION 

 

PARCEL NUMBER:   001-530-026 

 

PROPERTY SIZE: 1.297 acres  

 

EXISTING ZONING: R- Single Family and Multiple Family Residential  

 

MASTER PLAN DESIGNATION:  (RES- MD) Residential Medium Density 

 

EXISTING LAND USE:   Undeveloped 

 

 

NEIGHBORHOOD CHARACTERISTICS: 

• The property is surrounded by: 

• North: R- Residential / Developed  

• East: R - Residential / Developed 

• West: R- Residential (Outside City Limits/ Indian Colony)  / Developed  

• South: R- Residential / Developed 

 

PROPERTY CHARACTERISTICS: 

• The area is currently undeveloped. 
• The area slopes from west to the east, with minimal topographic challenges 
• The property is within the 5400 water zone and can be serviced with water.  
• The area is accessed from Indian View Heights Drive. 

 
APPLICABLE MASTER PLANS AND CITY CODE SECTIONS: 
 

• City of Elko Master Plan-Land Use Component 

• City of Elko Master Plan-Transportation Component 

• City of Elko Redevelopment Plan 

• City of Elko Wellhead Protection Plan 

• City of Elko Code 3-2-3 General Provisions 

• City of Elko Code 3-2-4 Establishment of Zoning Districts 

• City of Elko Code 3-2-5 Residential Zoning Districts 

• City of Elko Code 3-2-17 Traffic, Access, Parking and Loading Regulations 

• City of Elko Code 3-2-18 Conditional Use Permits 

• City of Elko Code 3-8 Flood Plain Management 

 

 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION 

 

• APN 001-530-026 is owned by Kelly Builders, LLC  

• The area fronts Indian View Heights Drive.  

• City of Elko utilities are in the vicinity as well as other non-city utilities. 



CUP 11-19 
Kelly Builders, LLC 

APN: 001-530-026 

 

  Page 3 of 6 

• The proposed development includes 10 townhomes and one common area. 

 

MASTER PLAN 

 

Land Use 

 
1. The Master Plan Land Use Atlas shows the area as Residential Medium Density.  
2. R- Single Family and Multiple Family Residential zoning district is listed as a 

corresponding zoning district for Residential Medium Density. 
3. Objective 1: Promote a diverse mix of housing options to meet the needs of a variety of 

lifestyles, incomes, and age groups. 
 
The proposed conditional use permit is in conformance with the Land Use Component of the 
Master Plan  
 

Transportation 

 
1. The area will be accessed from Indian View Heights Drive.  
2. Indian View Heights Drive is identified as a Residential Collector. 

 
The proposed conditional use permit is compatible with the Master Plan Transportation 
Component and is consistent with the existing transportation infrastructure.   

 

ELKO WELLHEAD PROTECTION PLAN 

 

• The property is located inside the 20-year capture zone for several City wells. 

 
ELKO REDEVELOPMENT PLAN: 
 

1. The property is not located within the redevelopment area. 
 

SECTION 3-2-3 GENERAL PROVISIONS 

 

• Section 3-2-3 (C) 1 of City code specifies use restrictions. The following use restrictions 

shall apply.  

1. Principal Uses: Only those uses and groups of uses specifically designated as 

“principal uses permitted’ in zoning district regulations shall be permitted as 

principal uses; all other uses shall be prohibited as principal uses 

2. Conditional Uses: Certain specified uses designated as “conditional uses 

permitted” may be permitted as principal uses subject to special conditions of 

location, design, construction, operation and maintenance hereinafter specified in 

this chapter or imposed by the planning commission or city council. 

3. Accessory Uses: Uses normally accessory and incidental to permitted principal or 

conditional uses may be permitted as hereinafter specified. 

Other uses may apply under certain conditions with application to the City.  



CUP 11-19 
Kelly Builders, LLC 

APN: 001-530-026 

 

  Page 4 of 6 

1. Section 3-2-3(C) states that certain specified uses designated as “conditional uses 

permitted” may be permitted as principal uses subject to special conditions of location, 

design, construction, operation and maintenance specified in Chapter 3 or imposed by 

the Planning Commission or City Council. 

2. Section 3-2-3(D) states that “No land may be used or structure erected where the land 

is held by the planning commission to be unsuitable for such use or structure by reason 

of flooding, concentrated runoff, inadequate drainage, adverse soil or rock formation, 

extreme topography, low bearing strength, erosion susceptibility, or any other features 

likely to be harmful to the health, safety and general welfare of the community. The 

planning commission, in applying the provisions of this section, shall state in writing 

the particular facts upon which its conclusions are based. The applicant shall have the 

right to present evidence contesting such determination to the city council if he or she 

so desires, whereupon the city council may affirm, modify or withdraw the 

determination of unsuitability.” 
 
The proposed development is required to have an approval as a conditional use to be in 

conformance with this section of code.  

SECTION 3-2-4 ESTABLISHMENT OF ZONING DISTRICTS 

 

1. Section 3-2-4(B)  Required Conformity To District Regulations: The regulations set forth 

in this chapter for each zoning district shall be minimum regulations and shall apply 

uniformly to each class or kind of structure or land, except as provided in this subsection. 

2. Section 3-2-4(B)(4) stipulates that no yard or lot existing on the effective date hereof shall 

be reduced in dimension or area below the minimum requirements set forth in this title. 

 

The proposed development conforms to Section 3-2-4 of the City Code. 

 

SECTION 3-2-5-E-RESIDENTIAL ZONING DISTRICTS  

 

1. Section 3-2-5(E)(3)-Conditional Uses Permitted- Multiple-family residential 

developments which contain five (5) or more units located on a single lot or parcel; 

townhouse or row house developments. 

2. Section 3-2-5(G) The minimum setback standards for multi-family dwellings shall be the 

following.  

 

• Front Yard: 15 feet, 20 feet for a garage 

• Interior Side Yard: 7 feet 

• Exterior Side Yard: 15 feet 

• Rear Yard: 20 feet 

 

Setbacks have been provided on the plan and it does appear that the setbacks have been met. The 

proposed development is required to conform to this section of city code. 3-2-5(E). 



CUP 11-19 
Kelly Builders, LLC 

APN: 001-530-026 

 

  Page 5 of 6 

 

SECTION 3-2-17 TRAFFIC, ACCESS, PARKING AND LOADING REGULATIONS 

 

• It would appear that each townhome has two off street parking stalls provided on their lot 

and additional parking on a parking pad outside their townhome.  There are also 9 guest 

parking stalls provided. 

• Conformance with this section is required 

 

SECTION 3-2-18 CONDITIONAL USE PERMITS 

 

General Regulations: 

1. Certain uses of land within designated zoning districts shall be permitted as principal uses 

only upon issuance of a conditional use permit. Subject to the requirements of this chapter, 

other applicable chapters, and where applicable to additional standards established by the 

Planning Commission, or the City Council, a conditional use permit for such uses may be 

issued. 

2. Every conditional use permit issued, including a permit for a mobile home park, shall 

automatically lapse and be of no effect one (1) year from the date of its issue unless the 

permit holder is actively engaged in developing the specific property to the use for which 

the permit was issued. 

3. Every conditional use permit issued shall be personal to the permittee and applicable only 

to the specific use and to the specific property for which it is issued. However, the 

Planning Commission may approve the transfer of the conditional use permit to another 

owner. Upon issuance of an occupancy permit for the conditional use, signifying that all 

zoning and site development requirements imposed in connection with the permit have 

been satisfied, the conditional use permit shall thereafter be transferable and shall run with 

the land, whereupon the maintenance or special conditions imposed by the permit, as well 

as compliance with other provisions of the zoning district, shall be the responsibility of the 

property owner. 

4. Conditional use permits shall be reviewed from time to time by City personnel. 

Conditional use permits may be formally reviewed by the Planning Commission. In the 

event that any or all of the conditions of the permit or this chapter are not adhered to, the 

conditional use permit will be subject to revocation. 

3-8 FLOOD PLAIN MANAGEMENT 

The property is not located within a Special Flood Hazard Area. 

 

FINDINGS 

 

1. The proposed development is in conformance with the Land Use component of the Master 

Plan 

2. The proposed development is in conformance with the existing transportation 

infrastructure and the Transportation component of the Master Plan 

3. The site is suitable for the proposed use. 

4. The proposed development is in conformance with the City Wellhead Protection Program. 



CUP 11-19 
Kelly Builders, LLC 

APN: 001-530-026 

 

  Page 6 of 6 

5. The proposed use is consistent with surrounding land uses. 

6. The proposed use is in conformance with City Code 3-2-5 (E) R- Single Family Multiple 

Family Residential Zoning District and meets the required setbacks for multiple family 

development. 

7. The proposed development is in conformance with 3-2-3, 3-2-4, 3-2-17, 3-2-18, and 3-8 of 

the Elko City Code.  

 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

 
Staff recommends APPROVAL of CUP 11-19 with the following conditions: 

1. The CUP 11-19 shall be personal to the permittee and applicable only to the submitted 

application conforming to the exhibits as presented. 

2. Landscaping shall be installed and not obstruct the view of oncoming traffic at the 

intersections. Home Owner’s Association is to provide such maintenance and care as is 

required to obtain the effect intended by the original landscape plan for the development. 

3. CUP 11-19 to be recorded with the Elko County Recorder within 90 days after 

commencement of work. 

4. The permit shall be personal to the permittee, Kelly Builders, LLC. and applicable only to 

the specific use of multiple family residential and to the specific property for which it is 

issued. However, the Planning Commission may approve the transfer of the conditional use 

permit to another owner. Upon issuance of an occupancy permit for the conditional use, 

signifying that all zoning and site development requirements imposed in connection with 

the permit have been satisfied, the conditional use permit shall thereafter be transferable 

and shall run with the land, whereupon the maintenance or special conditions imposed by 

the permit, as well as compliance with other provisions of the zoning district, shall be the 

responsibility of the property owner. 

5. Guest parking to be for guest vehicles only, no RV parking allowed on site. 

6. All parking lot lighting is to be shielded or cut-off design. 

7. An illumination schedule is required to ensure lighting is adequate for safety with minimal 

impact to adjacent properties. 

8. There shall not be any placement of any mail gang boxes or kiosks in association with this 

complex placed in the city’s right of way and shall remain internal to the complex 

9. The exterior of the building shall be compatible with surrounding areas and shall be similar 

to what is presented in the application.   

10. The common areas are to be maintained in an acceptable manner at all times.  

 
 
Development Department Conditions: 
1. Tentative Map 13-19 must also be approved and those conditions met 
2. NDEP approval of construction plans required prior to issuance of a grading permit 
3. BMPs are required during grading/construction as set forth in the City's Construction Site 

BMP Handbook found online at:  
 
http://cms4.revize.com/revize/elkonv/WPCP-
Management%20PlansConstruction%20BMP%20Manual-DEC2015.pdf 





















LOT 1
2239 SQ FT

LOT 2
2239 SQ FT

LOT 3
2239 SQ FT

LOT 4
2090 SQ FT

LOT 5
2332 SQ FT

LOT 6
2307 SQ FT

LOT 7
2375 SQ FT

LOT 9
2504 SQ FT

LOT 10
2726 SQ FT

REMAINDER
COMMON AREAS
33,082.40 SQ FT

INDIAN VIEW HEIGHTS  DRIVE

GRI
SW

OLD
 A

VE
NU

E

LOT 8
2344 SQ FT

SHEET

OF

VERT:

SCALE
HORIZ:

D
AT

E
R

EV
D

ES
C

R
IP

TI
O

N

D
AT

E:

D
R

AW
N

 B
Y:

C
H

EC
KE

D
 B

Y:

D
ES

IG
N

 B
Y:

JO
B 

N
O

:

D
W

G
 N

O
:

06
-2

01
9

20
19

-1
8

LL
C

LL
C

12
-1

9-
19

1"=20'
N/A

1

EL
KO

, N
EV

AD
A

KE
LL

Y 
BU

IL
D

ER
S,

 L
LC

TH
E 

TO
W

N
 H

O
M

ES
 a

t R
U

BY
 V

IE
W

C
O

N
D

IT
IO

N
AL

 U
SE

 - 
SI

TE
 P

LA
N

12-19-19

(775) 397-2531

ELKO, NEVADA 89801
P.O. BOX 794

CONTACT: LANA L. CARTER, P.E.

CARTER ENGINEERING, LLC

CONTACT: WADE KELLY
ELKO, NEVADA 89801

OR LAURA KELLY

209 RAPTOR COURT

(775) 777-3217

THE TOWN HOMES at RUBY VIEW - CONDITIONAL USE

KELLY BUILDERS, LLC

1

EMAIL:kellybuilders@frontiernet.net
EMAIL: lanalcarter@live.com

(775) 738-4053

ELKO, NEVADA 89801
640 IDAHO STREET

CONTACT: ROBERT E. MORLEY, P.L.S.

HIGH DESERT ENGINEERING, LLC

EMAIL:  remorley@frontier.net LL
C

1. ZONING: R - SINGLE FAMILY AND MULTIPLE FAMILY RESIDENTIAL
DISTRICT.

2. APN = 001-530-026

3. LEGAL DESCRIPTION = PARCEL 1 OF FILE NUMBER 707194, IN THE
OFFICE OF THE ELKO COUNTY RECORDER.

4.  TOTAL AREA  PARCEL AREA IS 1.300 ACRES.

5.  10 LOTS TOTAL WITH ONE REMAINDER LOT.

6.  NO DEED RESTRICTIONS.

7. THE EXISTING PARCEL IS 1553 INDIAN VIEW HEIGHTS DRIVE.

8.  PARCEL TO BE SUBDIVIDED IS IN LOCATED IN SECTION 10
OF TOWNSHIP 34 NORTH, RANGE 55 EAST M.D.B.& M.

9. SUBDIVISION TO BE SERVED BY THE FOLLOWING UTILITY COMPANIES
CITY OF ELKO - WATER, SEWER & STORM DRAIN
SW GAS - NATURAL GAS
FRONTIER - COMMUNICATIONS AND TELEPHONE
NV ENERGY - ELECTRICAL
SATVIEW BROAD BAND - COMMUNICATIONS AND TELEVISION
ELKO SANITATION - WASTE DISPOSAL

10. THIS PROPERTY IS LOCATED IN ZONE X (AREA OF MINIMAL FLOOD
HAZARD) PER FEMA FIRM MAP 32007C5607E EFFECTIVE 9-4-13

11. THERE ARE NO NEW EASEMENTS TO BE DEDICATED.

12. ON SITE DRIVEWAY AND UTILITIES WILL BE PRIVATE AND MAINTAINED BY
THE HOME OWNERS ASSOCIATION.

13. IN ADDITION TO THE TWO CAR GARAGE EACH LOT SHALL HAVE A TWO
CAR PARKING PAD.   AN ADDITIONAL 9 PARKING SPACES ARE PROPOSED
FOR GUESTS.  THIS EXCEEDS THE CODE REQUIREMENT OF 2 SPACES
PER DWELLING UNIT.

14. SETBACK REQUIREMENTS: FRONT YARD = 15 FEET
INTERIOR SIDE YARD = 7 FEET
REAR YARD =  20 FEET

15. THE TOPOGRAPHY AND BOUNDARY SHOWN HERE IS PER A SURVEY
PROVIDED BY HIGH DESERT ENGINEERING ON 10-16-19 PERFORMED
UNDER THE DIRECTION OF DUANE MERRILL, P.L.S.

16. ALL UNITS WILL HAVE FENCED YARDS WITH A 5' WIDE GATE FOR FOR
EMERGENCY ACCESS.

12
-1

9-
19

1
M

O
D

IF
Y 

D
W

 F
O

R
 L

O
TS

 4
, 5

, 6
12

-1
9-

19
2

C
H

AN
G

E 
R

O
W

 S
ID

EW
AL

K 
FR

O
M

 4
' T

O
 5

' W
ID

E
12

-1
9-

19
3

AD
D

 N
O

TE
 1

6



FINISH GRADE

TOP PLATE

MAIN FLOOR LINE

9
'-0

"



Agenda Item # I.A.2. 

Created on 12/17/2019  Planning Commission Action Sheet 

Elko City Planning Commission 
Agenda Action Sheet 

 

1. Title: Review and consideration of Tentative Map 13-19, filed by Kelly Builders, 

LLC for the development of a subdivision entitled Townhomes at Ruby View 

involving the proposed division of approximately 1.297 acres of property into 10 lots 

for residential development and 1 common lot within the R (Single Family and 

Multiple Family Residential) Zoning District, in conjunction with a conditional use 

permit application, and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION 
 

2. Meeting Date:  January 2, 2020 

 

3. Agenda Category: NEW BUSINESS, PUBLIC HEARINGS 

 

4. Time Required: 20 Minutes 

 

5. Background Information: Subject property is located on the south side of Indian View 

Heights Drive at the intersection of Griswold Drive.  (APN 001-530-026) 
 

6. Business Impact Statement: Not Required 

 

7. Supplemental Agenda Information: Application and Staff Report 

 

8. Recommended Motion: Recommend that the City Council conditionally approve 

Tentative Map 13-19 based on facts, findings, and conditions as presented in Staff 

Report dated December 17, 2019. 
 

9. Findings: See Staff Report dated December 17, 2019 

 

10. Prepared By: Michele Rambo, AICP, Development Manager 

 

11. Agenda Distribution:  Kelly Builders, LLC 

209 Raptor Court 

Elko, NV 89801 

kellybuilders@frontiernet.net 

 

Carter Engineering, LLC 

Attn: Lana Carter 

P.O. Box 794 

Elko, NV 89801 

lanalcarter@live.com 





Page 1 of 15

CITY OF ELKO STAFF REPORT

REPORT DATE: December 17, 2019
PLANNING COMMISSION DATE: January 7, 2020
AGENDA ITEM NUMBER:
APPLICATION NUMBER: Tentative Map 13-19
APPLICANT: Kelly Builders, LLC
PROJECT DESCRIPTION: Townhomes at Ruby View

A Tentative Map for the proposed division of approximately 1.297 acres of property into 10
townhouse lots for residential development and 1 common lot within an R (Single Family
and Multiple Family Residential) Zoning District.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

RECOMMEND CONDITIONAL APPROVAL, subject to findings of fact, and conditions as stated
in this report.

City of Elko
1751 College Avenue

Elko, NV  89801
(775) 777-7160

FAX (775) 777-7119



Tentative Map 13-19
Townhomes at Ruby View

Page 2 of 15

PROJECT INFORMATION

PARCEL NUMBER: 001-530-026

PARCEL SIZE: 1.297 Acres

EXISTING ZONING: (R) Single Family and Multiple Family Residential

MASTER PLAN DESIGNATION: (RES-MD) Residential Medium Density

EXISTING LAND USE: Vacant

NEIGHBORHOOD CHARACTERISTICS:

The property is surrounded by:
 North: Single and Multiple Residential / Developed
 South: Single and Multiple Residential (R) / Developed
 East: Single and Multiple Residential (R) / Developed
 West: Tribal Land / Developed

PROPERTY CHARACTERISTICS:

 The property is an undeveloped residential parcel.
 The site abuts previous residential development to the north, churches to the south, east,

and west.
 The parcel has some slope to it, which is incorporated into the design of the lots where

possible.
 The property will be accessed off of Indian View Heights Drive.

APPLICABLE MASTER PLAN AND CITY CODE SECTIONS:

 City of Elko Master Plan – Land Use Component
 City of Elko Master Plan – Transportation Component
 City of Elko Development Feasibility, Land Use, Water Infrastructure, Sanitary Sewer

Infrastructure, Transportation Infrastructure, and Annexation Potential Report –
November 2012

 City of Elko Redevelopment Plan
 City of Elko Wellhead Protection Plan
 City of Elko Zoning – Section 3-2-3 General Provisions
 City of Elko Zoning – Section 3-2-4 Establishment of Zoning Districts
 City of Elko Zoning – Section 3-2-5(E) Single Family and Multiple Family Residential

District
 City of Elko Zoning – Section 3-2-5(G) Residential Zoning Districts Area, Setback, and

Height
 City of Elko Zoning – Section 3-2-17 Traffic, Access, Parking and Loading Regulations
 City of Elko Zoning – Chapter 3 Subdivisions
 City of Elko Zoning – Section 3-8 Flood Plain Management
 City of Elko Public Ways and Property – Title 9, Chapter 8 Post Construction Runoff

Control and Water Quality Management



Tentative Map 13-19
Townhomes at Ruby View

Page 3 of 15

BACKGROUND:
1. The property owner and applicant is Kelly Builders, LLC.
2. The subdivision is located on APN 001-530-026.
3. The property is undeveloped.
4. The proposed subdivision consists of 10 townhouse lots and 1 common lot.
5. The total subdivided area is approximately 1.297 acres.
6. The proposed density is 7.71 units per acre.
7. No phasing is proposed as part of this subdivision.
8. There are no new roads or dedications offered as part of the project.
9. The property is located on the south side of Indian View Heights Drive at the intersection

of Griswold Drive.
10. A Stage 1 meeting for the proposed subdivision was held on February 14, 2019.

MASTER PLAN

Land Use:

1. The land use is shown as Residential Medium Density.  Medium Density is identified as
having a density of 5-8 units per acre.

2. Single Family and Multiple Family Residential (R) zoning is listed as a corresponding
district for the Medium Density Designation in the Master Plan.

3. The listed Goal of the Land Use Component states: “Promote orderly, sustainable growth
and efficient land use to improve quality of life and ensure new development meets the
needs of all residents and visitors.”

4. Objective 1 under the Land Use component of the Master Plan states: “Promote a diverse
mix of housing options to meet the needs of a variety of lifestyles, incomes, and age
groups.”

a. Best Practice 1.1 – The proposed subdivision meets several of the methods
described to achieve a diverse mix of single family homes in the community.

b. Best Practice 1.3 – The location of the proposed subdivision appears to support
the City striving for a blended community by providing a mix of housing types in
the neighborhood and is supported by existing infrastructure.

5. Objective 8 of the Land Use component of the Master Plan states: “Ensure that new
development does not negatively impact County-wide natural systems or public/federal
lands such as waterways, wetlands, drainages, floodplains, etc. or pose a danger to human
health and safety.”  Staff believes there will be no negative impacts to natural systems
and no issue with regard to human health and safety.

The proposed subdivision and development is in conformance with the Land Use component of
the Master Plan.

Transportation:

1. The project will be accessed from Indian View Heights Drive.
2. Indian View Heights Drive is classified as a Residential Collector road.
3. The interior circulation of the project will be provided by a private driveway.
4. The Master Plan requires Residential Collector roads to have 60 feet of right-of-way.
5. Indian View Heights Drive has 60 feet of right-of-way.  No further dedications are

required.



Tentative Map 13-19
Townhomes at Ruby View

Page 4 of 15

6. Upon full buildout, the proposed subdivision is expected to generate approximately 58
additional Average Daily Trips based on 5.81 trips/townhome (ITE Trip Generation, 10th

Edition).

The proposed subdivision and development is in conformance with the Transportation
component of the Master Plan.

ELKO AIRPORT MASTER PLAN:

The proposed subdivision and development does not conflict with the Airport Master Plan.

CITY OF ELKO DEVELOPMENT FEASIBILITY, LAND USE, WATER
INFRASTRUCTURE, SANITARY SEWER INFRASTRUCTURE, TRANSPORTATION
INFRASTRUCTURE, AND ANNEXATION POTENTIAL REPORT – NOVEMBER
2012:

The proposed subdivision does not conflict with the City of Elko Development Feasibility, Land
Use, Water Infrastructure, Sanitary Sewer Infrastructure, Transportation Infrastructure, and
Annexation Potential Report – November 2012.

ELKO REDEVELOPMENT PLAN:

The property is not located within the Redevelopment Area.

ELKO WELLHEAD PROTECTION PLAN:

The property is located within the 20-year capture zone for several City of Elko wells.
Development of the site is required to be connected to a programmed sewer system and all street
drainage will be directed to a storm sewer system.

SECTION 3-3-5 TENTATIVE MAP STAGE (STAGE II):

Tentative Map Approval 3-3-5(E)(2)(a)-(k) – Requires the following findings:

a. Environmental and health laws and regulations concerning water and air pollution, the
disposal of solid waste, facilities to supply water, community or pubic sewage disposal,
and, where applicable, individual systems for sewage disposal.

 The proposed subdivision will be connected to the city’s water supply system,
programmed sewer system and is required to be in compliance with all applicable
federal, state, and local requirements.

b. The availability of water which meets applicable health standards and is sufficient in
quantity for the reasonably foreseeable needs of the subdivision.

 The City of Elko Engineering Department is required to model the anticipated
water consumption of the subdivision.  The City of Elko Utility Department will
be required to submit a “Tentative Will-Serve Letter” to the State of Nevada.  The
water modeling requires an update to reflect the increased number of lots.
Current City-wide annual water usage is approximately 50% of the total allocated
water rights.



Tentative Map 13-19
Townhomes at Ruby View

Page 5 of 15

 City of Elko currently has excess pumping capacity of 3,081 gallons per minute.
Sufficient infrastructure and pumping capacity exists to provide the required
water volume to serve the proposed subdivision and development.

 The Developer will extend properly sized infrastructure as required for
development of the property.

 The proposed subdivision and development will not create an unreasonable
burden on the existing water supply.

c. The availability and accessibility of utilities.
 Utilities are available in the immediate area and can be extended for the proposed

development.

d. The availability and accessibility of public services such as schools, police protection,
transportation, recreation, and parks.

 Schools, fire and police, and recreational services are available throughout the
community.

e. Conformity with the zoning ordinance and the City’s Master Plan, except that if any
existing zoning ordinance is inconsistent with the City’s Master Plan, the zoning
ordinance takes precedence.

 The Master Plan Land Use Map shows the area as Medium Density Residential.
The proposed subdivision and development have been designed in accordance
with the Single Family and Multiple Family Residential (R) zone.

 The result is a density of 7.71 units per acre, which meets the minimum density of
4 units per acre specified in the Master Plan.

 The proposed subdivision is in conformance with the City’s Master Plan as well
as the Zoning Ordinance.

f. General conformity with the City’s Master Plan of streets and highways.
 The proposed subdivision is in conformance with the Transportation Component

of the Master Plan.

g. The effect of the proposed subdivision on existing public streets and the need for new
streets or highways to serve the subdivision.

 The proposed subdivision and development will add approximately 58 Average
Daily Trips to Indian View Heights Drive.  Based on the threshold of 1,000 ADT
referenced in the Master Plan, a traffic study is not required with this subdivision.

 The proposed subdivision and development will not cause unreasonable traffic
congestion or unsafe conditions with respect to existing or proposed streets.

h. Physical characteristics of the land, such as floodplain, slope, and soil.
 The proposed subdivision and subsequent development of the property is

expected to reduce the potential for erosion in the immediate area.  Development
of the property will not cause unreasonable soil erosion.

 A hydrology report is required with the Final Map and Construction Plan
submittal.



Tentative Map 13-19
Townhomes at Ruby View

Page 6 of 15

 The proposed subdivision and development is not expected to result in
unreasonable erosion or reduction in the water holding capacity of the land
thereby creating a dangerous or unhealthy condition.

i. The recommendations and comments and those entities and persons reviewing the
Tentative Map pursuant to this Chapter and NRS 278.330 to 278.3485, inclusive.

j. The availability and accessibility of fire protection, including, but not limited to, the
availability and accessibility of water and services for the prevention and containment of
fires, including fires in wild lands.

k. The submission by the subdivider of an affidavit stating that the subdivider will make
provision for payment of the tax imposed by Chapter 375 of NRS and for compliance
with the disclosure and recording requirements of Subsection 5 of NRS 598.0923, if
applicable, by the subdivider or any successor in interest.

There are no obvious considerations or concerns which indicate the proposed subdivision would
not be in conformance with all applicable provisions.

SECTION 3-3-6 CONTENT AND FORMAT OF TENTATIVE MAP SUBMITTAL:

A. Form and Scale – The Tentative Map conforms to the required size and form
specifications.

B. Identification Data
1. The subdivision name, location, and section/township/range, with bearing to a

section corner or quarter-section corner, is shown.
2. The name, address, email, and telephone number of the subdivider is shown.
3. The engineer’s name, address, and telephone number are shown.
4. The scale is shown on all sheets.
5. The north arrow is shown on all sheets.
6. The date of initial preparation and dates of any subsequent revisions are shown.
7. A location map is provided.
8. A legal description is provided.

C. Physical Conditions
1. The existing topography of the site is shown.
2. Existing drainage conditions are shown on the Tentative Map.
3. There are no Special Flood Hazards within the proposed subdivision.
4. All roadways, easements, and corporate limits are shown within and adjacent to

the subdivision.
5. Dimensions of all subdivision boundaries are shown on the Tentative Map.
6. Gross and net acreage of the subdivision is shown.

D. Recorded Map Information:
1. Any previously recorded maps for adjacent properties is labeled on the Tentative

Map.



Tentative Map 13-19
Townhomes at Ruby View

Page 7 of 15

E. Existing Zoning:
1. The zoning is shown for the subject property.  Zoning classifications for adjacent

properties are also shown on the Tentative Map.
F. Proposed Improvements and Other Features Data:

1. The proposed interior driveway layout is shown. None of the streets are named or
proposed for dedication. The grades of the proposed streets are shown on the
grading plan.  The continuation of roadways is not required of the proposed
subdivision.

2. The lot layout with consecutively numbered lots is shown.  The area and
dimensions for each lot are shown, as well as the total number of lots.

3. Typical easements will be required along all lot lines.
4. No street dedications are proposed.
5. A Conditional Use Permit is required to allow for the use of townhouses in the

Single Family and Multiple Family Residential zoning. This application has been
submitted and is being processed by the Planning Department.

G. Proposed Deed Restrictions:
1. Proposed CC&R’s for the subdivision have been submitted.

H. Preliminary Grading Plan:
1. A grading plan has been provided.  Estimated quantities of cut and fill have been

provided in a separate document.
I. NPDES Permit Compliance:

1. The subdivider will be required to comply with the City of Elko’s storm water
regulations.

J. Proposed Utility Methods and Requirements:
1. The proposed sewage disposal infrastructure connecting to the City’s

infrastructure is shown on the utility plan.
2. The proposed water supply infrastructure connecting to the City’s infrastructure is

shown on the utility plan.
3. The Tentative Map shows storm water infrastructure.  A hydrology report will be

required with the Final Map and Construction Plan submittal.
4. Utilities in addition to City utilities must be provided with construction plans

required for Final Map submittal.
5. The City will not require a traffic impact study for the proposed subdivision.

SECTION 3-3-9 GENERAL REQUIREMENTS FOR SUBDIVISION DESIGN:

A. Conformance with Master Plan: The proposed subdivision is in conformance with the
Master Plan objectives for density and applicable zoning.

B. Public Facility Sites: No public facility sites are proposed for dedication.
C. Land Suitability: The area proposed for subdivision is suitable for the proposed

development based on the findings in this report.

The proposed subdivision is in conformance with Section 3-3-9 of City code.



Tentative Map 13-19
Townhomes at Ruby View

Page 8 of 15

SECTION 3-3-10 STREET LOCATION AND ARRANGEMENT:

A. Conformance with Plan: The proposed subdivision utilizes an existing section of Indian
View Heights Drive for access.

B. Layout: Street continuation through the proposed subdivision is not required.
C. Extensions: No extensions are required as part of the proposed subdivision.
D. Arrangement of Residential Streets: The arrangement of streets within the subdivision

prevents outside traffic from utilizing the neighborhood for cut-through traffic.
E. Protection of Residential Properties: There are no lots that have frontage or access from

arterial streets.  A note has been required on the Tentative Map that no lots shall front on
Celtic Way, a Minor Collector.

F. Parallel Streets: Consideration of street location is not required.
G. Topography: The residential driveway has been designated to address the topography of

the area.
H. Alleys: No alleys are proposed.
I. Half-Streets: There are no half-streets proposed.
J. Dead-End Streets: There are no dead-end streets proposed. The driveway is designed to

allow for appropriate turnaround areas for traffic, as well as fire trucks.
K. Intersection Design: The proposed intersection with Indian View Heights Drive are code

compliant.

The proposed subdivision is in conformance with Section 3-3-10 of City code.

SECTION 3-3-11 STREET DESIGN:

A. Required Right-of-Way Widths: Indian View Heights Drive currently consists of the
required 60 feet of right-of-way.  No new streets are proposed.

B. Street Grades: The proposed street grades are code compliant.
C. Vertical Curves: The vertical curves are code compliant.
D. Horizontal Alignment: The horizontal alignment of the driveway and intersection are

code compliant.

The proposed subdivision is in conformance with Section 3-3-11 of City code.

SECTION 3-3-12 BLOCK DESIGN:

A. Maximum Length of Blocks: The block design does not exceed the maximum length of a
block and maximizes block length.

B. Sidewalks or Pedestrian ways: The proposed sidewalks are code compliant.  No other
pedestrian ways are proposed.

The proposed subdivision is in conformance with Section 3-3-12 of City code.



Tentative Map 13-19
Townhomes at Ruby View

Page 9 of 15

SECTION 3-3-13 LOT PLANNING:

A. Lot Width, Depth, and Area: The lots are in conformance with the specifications
stipulated for the zoning in Elko City Code 3-2-5.

B. Building Setback: The proposed subdivision, when developed, can meet setback
requirements as stipulated in Elko City Code 3-2-5(G).

C. Side Lot Lines: The side lot lines are generally at right angles to the interior driveway.
Deviations occur on inside curves and are appropriate.

D. Accessibility: The development abuts a public street. All residents will have access to
Indian View Heights Drive.

E. Prohibitions: No units shall have direct access to Indian View Heights Drive.  All access
is to be through the proposed driveway.

The proposed subdivision is in conformance with Section 3-3-13 of City code with the note
added as part of section E (above).

SECTION 3-3-14 EASEMENT PLANNING:

A. Utility Easements: Typical side and rear yard easements are already in place. No new
easements are offered for dedication. Overhead utilities are not allowed within the
subdivision.

B. Underground Utilities: Overhead utilities are not allowed within the subdivision.  The
utility companies, at their discretion, may request a wider easement on the rear lot line.

C. Lots Facing Curvilinear Streets: Overhead utilities are not allowed within the subdivision.
D. Public Drainage Easement: Typical side and rear yard easements for drainage and/or

utilities are already in place.
E. Easement Land Not Considered and Considered in Minimum Lot Area Calculation: All

calculations appear to be correct.
F. Lots Backing Onto Arterial Streets: There are no lots proposed which back onto an

arterial street.
G. Water and Sewer Lines: The utilities are shown in the streets, within existing side or rear

easements, and in the proposed driveway access. Sanitary sewer will tie into the existing
city infrastructure near the northeast corner of the property.

The proposed subdivision is in conformance with Section 3-3-14 of City code.

SECTION 3-3-15 STREET NAMING:

No new streets are proposed as part of this project.

The proposed subdivision is in conformance with Section 3-3-15 of City code.

SECTIONS 3-3-16 STREET LIGHT DESIGN STANDARDS:

Conformance is required with the submittal of construction plans.



Tentative Map 13-19
Townhomes at Ruby View

Page 10 of 15

SECTION 3-3-17 through 3-3-22 (inclusive):

All referenced sections are applicable to Final Map submission, approval, and construction plans.

SECTION 3-3-23 PARK LAND DEDICATIONS:

There is no offer of dedication for park lands.

SECTION 3-2-3 GENERAL PROVISIONS:

Section 3-2-3(C)(1) of City code specifies use restrictions.  The following use restrictions shall
apply:

Principal Uses: Only those uses and groups of uses specifically designated as “principal uses
permitted” in zoning district regulations shall be permitted as principal uses; all other uses shall
be prohibited as principal uses.

Accessory Uses: Uses normally accessory and incidental to permitted principal or conditional
uses may be permitted as hereinafter specified.

Other uses may apply under certain conditions with application to the City.

Section 3-2-3(D) states that: “No land may be used or structure erected where the land is held by
the planning commission to be unsuitable for such use or structure by reason of flooding,
concentrated runoff, inadequate drainage, adverse soil or rock formation, extreme topography,
low bearing strength, erosion susceptibility, or any other features likely to be harmful to the
health, safety, and general welfare of the community.  The planning commission, in applying the
provisions of this section, shall state in writing the particular facts upon which its conclusions are
based.  The applicant shall have the right to present evidence contesting such determination to
the city council if he or she so desires, whereupon the city council may affirm, modify, or
withdraw the determination of unsuitability.”

The proposed subdivision and development is in conformance with Section 3-2-3 of City code.

SECTION 3-2-4 ESTABLISHMENT OF ZONING DISTRICTS:

1. Section 3-2-4(B) Required Conformity to District Regulations: The regulations set forth
in this chapter for each zoning district shall be minimum regulations and shall apply
uniformly to each class or kind of structure or land, except as provided in this subsection.

2. Section 3-2-4(B)(4) stipulates that no yard or lot existing on the effective date hereof
shall be reduced in dimension or area below the minimum requirements set forth in this
title.

The proposed subdivision is in conformance with Section 3-2-4 of City code.



Tentative Map 13-19
Townhomes at Ruby View

Page 11 of 15

SECTION 3-2-5(E) R – SINGLE FAMILY AND MULTIPLE FAMILY RESIDENTIAL:

Section 3-2-5(E)(2) Principal Uses Permitted:

1. Adult care facility serving ten (10) or fewer.
2. Electric power substations, sewer lift stations, and water pump stations wherein service to

district residents requires location within the district.
3. Multiple-family residential units, including a duplex, triplex, or a fourplex located on a

single lot or parcel, provided area and setback requirements are met.
4. One single-family dwelling of a permanent character in a permanent location with each

dwelling unit on its own parcel of land and provided all area and setback requirements
are met.

5. Publicly owned and operated parks and recreation areas and centers.
6. Residential facility for groups of ten (10) or fewer.

The proposed subdivision and development is in conformance with Section 3-2-5(E)(2).
Conformance with Section 3-2-5(E) is required as the subdivision develops.

SECTION 3-2-5(G) RESIDENTIAL ZONING DISTRICTS AREA, SETBACKS, AND
HEIGHT:

1. Lot areas are shown.
2. Lot dimensions are shown. The lot dimensions are in conformance with Section 3-2-5(G)

of City code.

The proposed subdivision and development is in conformance with Section 3-2-5(G) of City
code.

SECTION 3-2-17 TRAFFIC, ACCESS, PARKING, AND LOADING:

1. Indian View Heights Drive is designated as a Residential Collector in the Master Plan.
No new streets are being proposed as part of the proposal.

2. The proposed lots are large enough to develop the required off-street parking.  Each
townhouse unit will include a two-car garage within the individual lots.  Additional guest
parking will be provided in the common lot owned and maintained by the Homeowner’s
Association.

3. The access driveway is proposed to be more than the 75 feet required in Section 3-2-
17(B)(3)(3).

The proposed subdivision and development is in conformance with Section 3-2-17 of City code.
Conformance with Section 3-2-17 is required as the subdivision develops.

SECTION 3-8 FLOOD PLAIN MANAGEMENT:

The proposed subdivision and development is not located in a designated special flood hazard
area and is in conformance with Section 3-8 of City Code.



Tentative Map 13-19
Townhomes at Ruby View

Page 12 of 15

TITLE 9, CHAPTER 8 POST CONSTRUCTION RUNOFF CONTROL AND WATER
QUALTIY MANAGEMENT:

Final design of the subdivision is required to conform to the requirements of this title.  The
Tentative Map storm drain infrastructure is shown through the area.

OTHER:

The following permits will be required for the project:

1. State storm water general permit: Required submittals to the City of Elko are a plan view
showing the storm water controls, a copy of the Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan
(SWPPP) and a copy of the certified confirmation letter from the Nevada Department of
Environmental Protection.

2. A Surface Area Disturbance (SAD) is required if the disturbed area is equal to or greater
than five (5) acres.  A copy of the SAD permit is required to be submitted to the City of
Elko.

3. A street cut permit from the City of Elko.
4. A grading permit from the City of Elko.
5. All other applicable permits and fees required by the City of Elko.
6. The City of Elko also requires submittal of the plans to the individual utility companies

before permits will be issued for the project.

FINDINGS

1. The proposed subdivision and development is in conformance with the Land Use
component of the Master Plan.

2. The proposed subdivision and development is in conformance with the Transportation
component of the Master Plan.

3. The proposed subdivision and development does not conflict with the Airport Master
Plan.

4. The proposed subdivision does not conflict with the City of Elko Development
Feasibility, Land Use, Water Infrastructure, Sanitary Sewer Infrastructure, Transportation
Infrastructure, and Annexation Potential Report – November 2012.

5. The property is not located within the Redevelopment Area.

6. The proposed subdivision and development are in conformance with the Wellhead
Protection Program.  The sanitary sewer will be connected to a programed sewer system
and all street drainage will be directed to a storm sewer system.



Tentative Map 13-19
Townhomes at Ruby View

Page 13 of 15

7. No zoning amendment is required for the proposed subdivision.

8. In accordance with Section 3-3-5(E)(2), the proposed subdivision and development will
not result in undue water or air pollution based on the following:

a. There are no obvious considerations or concerns which indicate the proposed
subdivision would not be in conformance with all applicable environmental and
health laws and regulations.

b. There is adequate capacity within the City’s water supply to accommodate the
proposed subdivision.

c. The proposed subdivision and development will not create an unreasonable
burden on the existing water system.

d. There is adequate capacity at the Water Reclamation Facility to support the
proposed subdivision and development.

e. The proposed subdivision and development will be connected to the City’s
programed sanitary sewer system.  Therefore, the ability of soils to support waste
disposal does not require evaluation prior to Tentative Map approval.

f. Utilities are available in the immediate area and can be extended for the proposed
development.

g. Schools, fire and police, and recreational services are available throughout the
community.

h. The proposed subdivision and development will not cause unreasonable traffic
congestion or unsafe conditions with respect to existing or proposed streets.

i. The area is not located within a designated flood zone.  Concentrated storm water
runoff has been addressed as shown on the grading plan.

j. The proposed subdivision and development is not expected to result in
unreasonable erosion or reduction in the water-holding capacity of the land
thereby creating a dangerous or unhealthy condition.

9. The proposed subdivision submittal is in conformance with Section 3-3-6 of City code.

10. The proposed subdivision is in conformance with Section 3-3-9 of City code.

11. The proposed subdivision is in conformance with Section 3-3-10 of City code.

12. The proposed subdivision is in conformance with Section 3-3-11 of City code.

13. The proposed subdivision is in conformance with Section 3-3-12 of City code.

14. The proposed subdivision is in conformance with Section 3-3-13 of City code.

15. The proposed subdivision is in conformance with Section 3-3-14 of City code.

16. The proposed subdivision is in conformance with Section 3-3-15 of City code.

17. The proposed subdivision and development is in conformance with Section 3-2-3 of City
code.



Tentative Map 13-19
Townhomes at Ruby View

Page 14 of 15

18. The proposed subdivision and development is in conformance with Section 3-2-4 of City
code.

19. The proposed subdivision and development is in conformance with Section 3-2-5(E)(2).
Conformance with Section 3-2-5(E) is required as the subdivision develops.

20. The proposed subdivision and development is in conformance with Section 3-2-5(G) of
City code.

21. The proposed subdivision and development is in conformance with Section 3-2-17.
Conformance with Section 3-2-17 is required as the subdivision develops.

22. The proposed subdivision and development is not located in a designated flood hazard
area and is in conformance with Section 3-8 of City code.

23. The proposed subdivision design shall conform to Title 9, Chapter 8 of City code.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

Staff recommends this item be conditionally approved with the following conditions:

Development Department:

1. Conditional Use Permit 11-19 must be approved and all conditions be met.

2. The subdivider is to comply with all provisions of the NAC and NRS pertaining to the
proposed subdivision.

3. Tentative Map approval constitutes authorization for the subdivider to proceed with
preparation of the Final Map and associated construction plans.

4. The Tentative Map and construction plans must be approved by the Nevada Department
of Environmental Protection prior to submitting for Final Map approval by the City of
Elko.

5. Tentative Map approval does not constitute authorization to proceed with site
improvements.

6. The applicant must submit an application for Final Map within a period of four (4) years
in accordance with NRS.360(1)(a).  Approval of the Tentative Map will automatically
lapse at that time.

7. A soils report is required with Final Map submittal.

8. A hydrology report is required with Final Map submittal.



Tentative Map 13-19
Townhomes at Ruby View

Page 15 of 15

9. Final Map construction plans are to comply with Chapter 3-3 of City code.

10. The subdivision design and construction shall comply with Title 9, Chapter 8 of City
code.

11. The Utility Department will issue an Intent to Serve letter upon approval of the Tentative
Map by the City Council.

Fire Department:

1. Work with the church and good relations for the gate(s) to be placed to the back of the
new subdivision for emergency access.

2. Gates to all backyards for emergency access to be constructed.

3. Keeping an isle for emergency responders to access if needed to the rear of all properties.





































 

Page 1 

 

Draft CCR’s and HOA document 

 

 

DECLARATION OF EASEMENTS, COVENANETS, CONDITIONS AND RESTRICTIONS 

THE TOWNHOMES AT RUBY VIEW 

 

 

 

 

   



 

Page 2 

DECLARATION OF EASEMENTS, COVENANTS, CNDITIONS AND RESTRICTIONS 

THE TOWNHOMES AT RUBY VIEW 

 

A Planned Community in Elko, Nevada. 

 

  THIS DECLARATION (the “Declaration”) is made this ____ day of November 2019, by Kelly 

Builders, LLC, A Nevada limited liability company (the “Declarant”), in its capacity as the owner and 

developer of THE TOWNHOMES AT RUBY VIEW, a Planned Community located in the City of Elko, County 

of Elko, State of Nevada. 

 

ARTICLE I 

PURPOSE AND EFFECTUATION 

1.01 Purpose.  The purpose of this instrument is to provide for the preservation of the values of Lots 

and residential Units within THE TOWNHOMES AT RUBY VIEW (the “Development”), a Planned 

community in Elko, Nevada, and for the maintenance of the driveways, amenities, open spaces, 

landscaping all other Common Areas therein.  

1.02 Effectiveness.  From and after the effective date hereof: (a) Each part of the Development and 

each Lot and Unit lying within the boundaries of the Development shall constitute constituent 

parts of a single planned community; (b) The Development shall consist of the Lots and of the 

Common Areas which are described and depicted on the plat and in this Declaration; (c) The 

Declaration for the Development shall consist of this document  as the same may be modified, 

amended, supplemented, or expanded in accordance with the provisions thereof; and (d) The 

Plat of the Development shall consist of the instrument filed for record in the Office of the Elko 

County Recorder, Elko, Nevada, as the same may be amended. 

 

ARTICLE II 

DEFINITIONS 

  When used in this Declaration each of the following terms shall have the meaning indicated: 

2.01  Articles shall mean and refer to the Articles of Incorporation of the Association, which are or 

shall be filed with Nevada Secretary of State and in the Office of the Ombudsman for Common Interest 

Communities of the Nevada Division of Real Estate, State of Nevada, as amended from time to time. 

2.02  Assessment shall mean the amount, which is to be levied and assessed against each Lot and 

paid by each Owner to the Association for Association expenses. 

2.03  Association shall mean THE TOWNHOMES AT RUBY VIEW HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATION, a 

Nevada nonprofit corporation, and its successors and assigns. 

2.04  Board shall mean the Board of Directors for the Association. 



 

Page 3 

2.05  Bylaws shall mean and refer to the Bylaws of the Association as set forth and embodied in this 

Declaration in Articles XI, XII, XIII. 

2.06  Common Areas shall mean all portions of the Development except the Lots and Units, and shall 

include all property owned by the Association for the common use and enjoyment of the Owners such 

as all private undedicated roadways, driveways, parking, amenities, open spaces, landscaping, structural 

common area, if any, and the like, together with all easements appurtenant thereto, as reflected on the 

plat. 

2.07  Declarant shall mean KELLY BUILDERS LLC, a Nevada limited liability company, its successors and 

assigns, if any, as developer of the Development. 

2.08  Declaration shall mean this “Declaration of Easements, Covenants, Conditions and Restrictions 

of THE TOWNHOMES AT RUBY VIEW, A Nevada Planned Community as the same may be supplemented 

or amended from time to time. 

2.09  Development shall mean the Planned Community known as THE TOWNHOMES AT RUBY VIEW, 

a Planned Community, as it exists at any given time. 

2.10  Limited Common Areas shall mean any Common Areas designated for exclusive use by the 

Owner of a particular Unit.  Limited Common Areas that are identified on the Plat with the same number 

or other designation by which a Unit is identified thereon shall be Limited Common Area for the 

exclusive use of the Owner of the Unit bearing the same number or designation. 

2.11   Lot shall mean and refer to any of the separately numbered and individually described parcels of 

land within the Development as designated on the Plat intended for single‐family residential use. 

2.12  Managing Agent shall mean any person or entity appointed or employed as Managing Agent by 

the Association. 

2.13  Mortgage shall mean any recorded first mortgage or first deed of trust encumbering a Lot; and 

Mortgagee shall mean any mortgage or beneficiary under a mortgage. 

2.14  Owner shall mean any person who is the owner of record (as reflected by the records in the 

office of the County Recorder of Elko County, Nevada) of a fee or undivided fee interest in any Lot, and 

any contract purchaser of any Lot.  Notwithstanding any applicable theory relating to mortgages, no 

Mortgagee nor any trustee or beneficiary of a deed of trust or trust deed shall be an owner unless such 

party acquires fee title pursuant to foreclosure or sale or conveyance in lieu thereof.  Declarant shall be 

an Owner with respect to each Lot owned by it.  Multiple owners of a particular Lot shall be jointly and 

severally liable to all responsibilities of an Owner. 

2.15  Plat shall mean and refer to the subdivision plat covering the Property entitled “THE 

TOWNHOMES AT RUBY VIEW,” ACCEPTED BY THE City of Elko, and recorded as File ___________ on 

__________, in the Office of the County Recorder of Elko County, Nevada. 

2.16  Property shall mean all land covered by this Declaration, including Common Areas and Lots.  The 

Property shall consist of the land described in Section 3.01 of Article III hereof. 

2.17  Reimbursement Assessment shall mean a charge against a particular Owner or his Lot for the 

purpose of reimbursing the Association for costs incurred in bringing the Owner or his Lot or Unit into 



 

Page 4 

compliance with the provisions of this Declaration, the Articles, Bylaws or rules and regulation of the 

Association, or any other charge designated as a Reimbursement Assessment in this Declaration the 

Articles, Bylaws or rules and regulations of the Association, together with costs, interest, attorney’s fees 

and other charges payable by such Owner pursuant to the provision of this Declaration. 

2.18  Unit it shall mean a structure which is designed, constructed and intended for use or occupancy 

as a single family residence on a Lot, together with all improvements located on the same Lot and used 

in conjunction with such residence, including anything located within or without said Unit (but 

designated and designed to serve only that Unit) such as patios decks, appliances, electrical receptacles 

and outlets, air conditioning compressors and other air conditioning apparatus, but specifically excluding 

roofs and exterior surfaces of Units (and/or building in which Units exist) and patio fences, all of which 

roofs, surfaces and fences shall be treated as Limited Common Areas designated for the exclusive use of 

the particular Units to which such surfaces appertain, even though not designated as Limited Common 

Areas on the Plat. 

 

ARTICLE III 

PROPERTY DESCRIPTION AND ANNEXATION 

 

3.01  Submission.  The Property which initially is and shall be held transferred, sold, conveyed, and 

occupied subject to the provisions of this Declaration consists of the following described real property in 

the City of Elko, County of Elko, State of Nevada: 

  Legal Description and any exceptions to follow 

TOGETHER WITH all easements, rights‐of‐way, and other appurtenances and rights incident to, 

appurtenant to, or accompanying the above described parcel of real property, whether or not 

the same are reflected on the Plat. 

RESERVING UNTO DECLARANT, however, such easements and rights on ingress an egress over, 

across, through, and under the said property and any improvements (including buildings) now or 

hereafter constructed thereon as may be reasonably for Declarant (in a manner which is 

reasonable and not inconsistent with the provisions of this Declaration:: (i) to construct and 

complete each of the buildings and Units and all of the other improvements described in this 

Declaration or in the Plat recorded concurrently herewith, and to do all things reasonable 

necessary or proper in connection therewith; and (ii) to improve portions of the said property 

with such other or additional improvements, facilities, or landscaping designed for the use and 

enjoyment of all the Owners as Declarant may reasonably determine to be appropriate. If, 

pursuant to the foregoing reservations, the said property or any improvement thereon is 

traversed or partially occupied by a permanent improvement or utility line, a perpetual 

easement for such improvement or utility line shall exist.  With the exception of such perpetual 

easements, the reservations hereby effected shall, unless sooner terminated in accordance with 

their terms, expire five (5) ears after the date on which this Declaration is filed for record in the 

office of the County Recorder of Elko County, Nevada. 



 

Page 5 

ALL OF THE FOREGOING ISSUBJECT TO  all liens for current and future taxes, assessments, and 

charges imposed or levied by governmental or quasi‐governmental authorities; all Patent 

reservations and exclusions; all mineral reservations of record and is incident thereto; all 

instruments of record which affect the above‐described real property of any portion thereof, 

including, without limitation, an Mortgage (and noting in this paragraph shall be deemed to 

modify or ament such Mortgage); all visible exists and rights‐of‐way; all easements and rights‐

of‐way, encroachments, or discrepancies shown on or revealed by the Plan or existing; an 

easement for each and every pipe, line cable, wire, utility line, or similar facility which traverse 

or partially occupies the said real property (including buildings) at such time as construction of 

all Development improvements is complete; and all easements necessary for ingress to, egress 

from, maintenance of and replacement of all such pipes, lines, cable, wires utility lines, and 

similar facilities; AND TO EACH OF THE COVENANTS, EASEMENTS, CONDITIONS ND RESTRICIONS 

CONTAINED IN THIS DECLARATION. 

3.02  Division of Lots.  The Development is hereby divided into ten (10) Lots, as set forth and 

described on the Plat, with appurtenant and equal rights and easements of use and enjoyment in and to 

the Common Areas, as well as appurtenant obligations pertaining to assessments, maintenance, etc., all 

as set forth in this Declaration 

 

ARTICLE IV 

DUTIES AND OBLIGATIONS FO OWNERS 

4.01  Maintenance and Repairs.  Each Owner shall at his own cost maintain his Lot and any 

improvements constructed thereon in good repair at all times, provided that Unit exteriors, roof, and 

patio fences shall be maintained and repaired by the Association as provided in Section 12.01 € of this 

Declaration.  In the event of the damage or destruction of any Unit, the Owner of the Lot on which such 

Unit is situated shall either rebuild the same within a reasonable time or shall raze the remains thereof 

so as to prevent the unsightly appearance and dangerous condition of a partially destroyed building in 

the Development.  The painting or repainting, remodeling, rebuilding or modification of any Unit 

exteriors or parts thereof must be submitted to and approved by the Architectural Control committee 

pursuant to it procedures.  Notwithstanding the obligations of the Association to maintain and repair 

Unit exteriors, roofs and patio fences as provided herein, no Owner shall openly or wantonly neglect or 

fail to help keep such items in good and attractive condition. 

4.02   Insurance.  Notwithstanding any insurance coverage required to be provided herein by the 

Association, each Owner shall procure and maintain in force hazard insurance on their Unit as is 

customary in projects such as the Development and which is consistent with each Owner’s individual 

circumstances (See also 8.02 of this Declaration). 

4.03  Assessments and Rules Observance. Each Owner shall be responsible for the prompt payment 

of any Assessments provided for in this Declaration and for the observance of the rules and regulations 

promulgated by the Association from time to time.  Owners in violation of the provisions of this Section 

4.03 will not be deemed to be in good standing for Association voting purpose. 



 

Page 6 

4.04  Transfer of Interests.  Except for obligations already accrued, an Owner who, for other than 

purposes of security, transfers all of his interests in his Lot to another, either voluntarily or by operation 

of law, shall be relieved by all obligations under this Declaration, following such transfer. 

 

ARTICLE V 

PROPERTY RIGHTS AND CONVEYANCES 

5.01  Easement Concerning Common Areas.   Each Lot shall have appurtenant thereto a nonexclusive 

right and easement of use and enjoyment in and to the Common Areas for their intended purposes.  

Such right and easement shall be appurtenant to and shall pass with title to each Lot and shall in no 

event be separated therefrom. 

5.02  Form of Conveyancing; Leases.  Any deed, lease, mortgage, deed of trust, purchase contract or 

other instrument conveying or encumbering title to a Lot shall describe the interest or estate involved 

substantially as follows: 

THE TOWNHOMES AT RUBY VIEW, a Planned Community in Elko, Nevada, SUBJECT TO  the 

“Declaration of Easements, Covenants, Conditions and Restrictions of THE TOWNHOMES AT 

RUBY VIEW,  a Planned Community in Elko, Nevada, recorded in the Office of the Elko County 

Recorder as Document No. ________ (as said Declaration may have heretofore been amended 

or supplemented), TOGETHER WITH  a right and easement of use and enjoyment in and to the 

Common Areas described, and as provided for, in said Declaration of Easements, Covenants, 

Conditions and Restrictions (as said Declaration may have heretofore been amended or 

supplemented)  

Whether or not the description employed in any such instrument is in the above‐specified form, 

however, all provisions o this Declaration shall be binding upon and shall inure to the benefit of any 

party who acquires any interest in a Lot. 

5.03  Ownership and Transfer of Title to Common Areas.  Concurrent with or immediately following 

the recordation of this Declaration and the Plat, Declarant shall convey to the Association title to the 

various Common Areas free and clear of all liens other than the lien of current general taxes and the lien 

of any nondelinquent assessments, charges, or taxes imposed by governmental or quasi‐governmental 

authorities.  All sewer laterals will be owned, operated and maintained by the Association. 

5.04  Limitation on Easement.  Each Lot’s appurtenant right and easement of use and enjoyment 

concerning the Common Areas shall be subject to the following: 

(a)  The right of the Association to govern by reasonable rules and regulations the use of the 

Common Areas so as to provide for the enjoyment of the Common Areas in a manner consistent 

with the collective rights of all the Owners; 

(b)  The right of the City of Elko, Nevada any any other governmental or quasi‐governmental 

body having jurisdiction over the Property, to enjoy access and rights of ingress and egress over 

and across any street or driveway, parking area, walkway, or open area contained within the 



 

Page 7 

Common Areas for the purpose of providing police and fire protection and providing any other 

governmental or municipal service; and 

(c)  The right of the Association to dedicate or transfer any part of the common Areas to any 

public agency or authority for such purposes and subject to such conditions as may be agreed to 

by the Association; provided that such dedication or transfer must first be assented to in writing 

by (i) the holder of each and every Mortgage and encumbers any Lot and (i) the Owners of Lots 

to which at least sixty percent (60%) of the total votes in the Association appertain. 

5.05  Utility Easements.  Each Lot is subject to appurtenant easements for underground lines for 

utility purposes under and through such portions of the Common Areas as are comprised of roads, 

walkways, and landscaped areas.  If any Owner utilities such easement rights with respect to his Lot or 

Unit, he shall be responsible for the restoration to its former state of any portion of the Common Areas, 

which have been disturbed or damaged as a result.  

5.06  Easements for Encroachments.  If any structure or Unit improvement (including without 

limitation, roof overhangs) constructed on any Lot whether or not constructed in replacement of the 

structure or improvement previously located thereon (so long as such structure or improvement is in 

substantially the same configuration and location as such prior structure or improvement) now or 

hereafter encroaches upon any other Lot or upon any portion of the common Areas, a valid easement 

for such encroachment and the maintenance thereof, so long as it continues, shall exist.  If any structure 

(including without limitation, roof overhangs) on any Lot shall be partially or totally destroyed and then 

rebuilt in a manner intended to substantially duplicate the location and configuration of the structure so 

destroyed, minor encroachments of such structure upon any other Lot or upon any portion of the 

Common Areas due to the reconstructed structures being in a slightly different location than its 

predecessor shall be permitted; and valid easements for such encroachments and maintenance thereof, 

so long as they continue, shall exist. 

 

ARTICLE VI 

USE RESTRICTIONS 

6.01  Use of Common Areas.   The Common Areas shall be used only in a manner consistent with their 

community nature and with he use restrictions applicable to Lots and Units set forth herein. 

6.02  Residential Use.  The Property is zoned residential, and each Lot and Unit is restricted to single‐

family residential use pursuant to applicable provisions of Elko City Code.  Each Lot, Unit and Owner are 

subject to the uses and restrictions imposed by such zoning, including occupancy and parking, and no 

Lot or Unit shall be used, occupied, or altered in violation of any ordinance or so as to create a nuisance 

or to interfere with the rights of any other Owner. 

6.03  Use Restrictions.  All activity on the Property is subject to the following use restrictions, and to 

any additional use restrictions, which may, from time to time, be adopted by the Board pursuant to 

Section 12.03 of this Declaration: 

(a)  Private Single‐Family Residence Use.  No Unit shall be used except for residential single‐

family purposes.  No Unit or any part thereof shall be used or occupied by any persons not 



 

Page 8 

coming within the definition of “Family” as such term is defined and intended in the Elko City 

Code as of the date hereof provided further, however, that no more than (3) unrelated persons 

may live together as a group in a single household in a dwelling Unit as therein defined. 

(b)  Rental or Lease of Unit.  No rental or lease of any Unit shall be for less than the whole 

thereof. 

(c)  Business Use.  No resident may operate a commercial trade or business in or from his 

Unit with employees of any kind or with customers who are not residents of the Development, 

or which create or maintain a nuisance.  No commercial trade or business may store any 

inventory over 250 cubic feet, and it must be contained within the Unit.  No commercial trade or 

business may be conducted in or from a Unit unless (a) the existence or operation of the 

business activity is not apparent or detectable by sign, sound or smell from outside the 

residence; (b) the business activity conforms to all home occupation ordinances and zoning 

requirements; (c) the business activity does not involve persons coming onto the Property who 

do not reside in the Development or door‐to‐door solicitation of residents of the Development; 

(d) the business activity is consistent with the residential character of the Development and 

does not constitute a nuisance, or a hazardous or offensive use, or threaten the security or 

safety of other residents of the Development; € the operator has a city issued business license; 

and (f) the resident has obtained the prior written consent of the Board.  Notwithstanding the 

foregoing, the leasing of a Unit shall not be considered a trade or business within the meaning of 

this subsection. 

(d)  Storage and Parking of Vehicles.  The driving, parking, standing, and storing of motor 

vehicles in, on or about the Property is governed and regulated as follows: 

1)  Parking Rules.  The parking rules and regulations adopted by the Board, as they 

may be amended from time to time. 

2)  Denial of Access.  No motor vehicle or trailer, including but not limited to any 

car, automobile, truck, van, or any other transportation device of any kind may be 

parked or stationed in such a manner so as to block access to any driveway or Unit or to 

create an obstacle or potentially dangerous condition. 

3)  Repairs.  No Resident shall repair or restore any vehicle of any kind in, on or 

about the Property, except for emergency repairs, and then only to the extent necessary 

to enable movement thereof to a property repair facility. 

4)  Garages.  No garage may be altered in such a manner that the number of motor 

vehicles which may reasonably be parked therein after the alteration is less that the 

number of motor vehicles that could have been reasonably parked in the garage as 

originally designed and constructed.  All garages shall be used primarily for the parking 

and storage of vehicles. 

5)  Open Parking.  Any parking in the open paring spaces of the Common Areas 

shall be limited to residents and their guests.  Parking for guests within the common 

Areas is limited to two (2) consecutive days or no more than two (2) days in any seven‐

day  (7) period.  Residents are encouraged to park their vehicles in their garages.  



 

Page 9 

Residents may parkin the open parking spaces of the Common Areas but shall not allow 

a resident’s vehicle to stand in an open parking space for more than 48 hours without 

moving the vehicle. 

6)  Damaged Vehicles.  All motor vehicles parked so as to be visible from the street 

or another Unit must be undamaged (less than $1,000 to repair) in good mechanical 

condition, registered, and licensed. 

7)  Storage of Vehicles.  Except as otherwise expressly permitted, motor vehicles 

may not be “stored’ so as to be visible from the street or another Unit.  This includes by 

way of illustration, but not limitation, any unregistered, unlicensed, abandoned, 

disabled, or damaged (more than $1,000 to repair) motor vehicles. 

8)  Recreational, Commercial and Oversized Vehicles.  Except for purposes of 

loading or unloading passengers or supplies, or as otherwise expressly permitted, no 

oversized vehicles (vehicles that do not fit within a standard parking stall), recreational 

vehicles, commercial vehicles, watercraft, or trailers may be parked or stored within the 

Property. 

9)  Towing.  Vehicles parked in violation of this Declaration may be towed by the 

Association as permitted under NRS 116.310 (s) at the owner’s sole risk and expense. 

10)  Emergency, Law Enforcement, and Public Utility Service Vehicles.  No 

restriction under this Declaration nor any rule or regulation adopted by the Board shall 

prohibit an emergency services vehicle, law enforcement vehicle or public utility service 

vehicle from accessing or parking within the Development as required under NRS 

116.350(3). 

(e)  Garbage and Refuse Disposal.  All trash, garbage, debris, rubbish and other waste shall be kept 

in a sealed, sanitary bag or container, and stored out of sight except for a twenty‐four (24) hour period 

on pick‐up days. 

(f)  Aerials, Antennas, and Satellite Systems.  All exterior aerials, antenna and satellite dishes 

(collectively “antenna”) must be positioned so that they are screened from view from the street.  

Satellite dishes must also be positioned in location wired for installation.  No antenna shall be erected, 

maintained or used in, on or about any Unit, outdoors and above ground, whether attached to or on top 

of any building, structure, Unit, or otherwise, upon the Property without the prior written consent of the 

Board, which shall not be unreasonably withheld.  If there is a conflict between this subsection and the 

FCC guidelines, the latter shall in all respects govern and control.  In making its decision, the Declarant 

and/or ARC shall abide by and be subject to all relevant local, state and federal law, including but not 

limited to all FCC guidelines, rules and regulation as they may be amended or supplemented from time 

to time.   

(g)  Animals and Pets. Up to two (2) household pets as that term is defined by Elko City Code per 

Unit are allowed; provided, however, pets must be properly licensed and registered.  Pets may not 

create a nuisance.  The following acts may constitute a nuisance: (1) causing damage to the property of 

anyone other than the pet owner; (2) causing unreasonable fouling of the air by odors; (3) causing 

unsanitary conditions; (4) running loose throughout the Property and not in a cage or on a leash and 



 

Page 10 

under the control of a responsible person; (5) barking, howling, whining, or making other disturbing 

noises in an excessive, continuous or untimely fashion; (6) molesting or harassing passersby by lunging 

at them or chasing passing vehicles; (7) attacking or threatening to attack people or other domestic 

animals; or (8) otherwise acting so as to bother, annoy or disturb the sensibilities of a reasonable person 

or interfering with the right of residents to the peaceful and quiet enjoyment of their property.  In 

addition to the foregoing, large animals over 60 pounds are not allowed.  No pets, livestock or poultry of 

any kind may be commercially bred on the Property. 

(h)  Laws.  Nothing shall be done, or kept in on or about the Property or any part thereof, which 

would be a violation of any stature, rule, ordinance, regulation, permit or other validly imposed 

requirement of any governmental body. 

(i)  Signs.  Except as provided under NRS 116.325, no signs, billboards, or advertising structures or 

devices of any kind may be built, installed or displayed on the Property or any Lot or Unit except for a 

single sign with a maximum size of 2’ x 2’ for specific purpose of advertising the sale of a Lot.  Signs 

advertising a Lot or Unit for rent or for lease are strictly prohibited.  Provided, however, this restriction 

does not apply to and is not binding upon the Declarant, who may use whatever signs it deems 

appropriate to market the Development and its Lots for sale or lease.  Declarant may maintain offices 

for sales and management, models in Units, and may maintain signs on the Property for marketing of 

the Development. 

(j)  Nuisances.  No noxious or offensive activity shall be carried on, in or about the Property, nor 

shall anything be done or permitted thereon which may be or may become an annoyance, disturbance, 

bother or nuisance to the neighborhood, or which might interfere with the right of other residents to 

the quiet and peaceful enjoyment of their property. 

(k)  Outbuildings or Structures.  No shed, outbuilding, or structure of a temporary nature or 

character shall be maintained by an Owner on the Property without written approval by the Board. 

(l)  Chimes and Musical Sound Makers.  Chimes, dream catchers, bells, tubes or other objects 

outside of a Unit which ring, strike or otherwise produce musical sounds or harmony heard by other 

residents are prohibited. 

 

ARTICLE VII 

ARCITECTURAL CONTROL 

7.01  Architectural Control Committee.  The Board of Directors of the Association shall appoint a 

three‐member Architectural Control Committee (the “Committee”), the function of which shall be to 

ensure that all improvements and landscaping within the Development harmonize with existing 

surroundings and structures.  The Committee shall be composed of Owners.  If such a Committee is not 

appointed, the Board itself shall perform the duties required of the Committee. 

7.02  Submission to Committee.  No Unit, accessory of or addition to a Unit which is visible from the 

Common Areas shall be constructed or maintained, and no alteration, repainting or refurbishing of the 

exterior of any Unit shall be performed, unless complete plans and specification therefore have first 

been submitted to and approved by the Committee. 



 

Page 11 

7.03  Standard.  In deciding whether to approve or disapprove plans and specifications submitted to 

it, the committee shall use its best judgment to insure that all improvements, construction, landscaping 

and alterations on Lots and Units within the Development conform to and harmonize with existing 

surrounds and structures.  Any structure hereafter constructed on any Lot in replacement of the 

structure previously located thereon shall be constructed in substantially the same configuration, 

location and architectural style and be approximately the same size as the prior structure; and if the 

plans and specifications therefore meet such criteria, the Committee must approve the same. 

7.04  Approval Procedure.  Any plans and specifications submitted to the Committee shall be 

approved or disapproved by it in wiring within thirty (30) days after submission; provided, however, that 

plans and specifications for any replacement structure to be constructed in substantially the same 

configuration, location and architectural style and to be of substantially the same size as its predecessor 

shall be approved or disapproved within ten(10) days after submission.  In the event the Committee fails 

to take any action within such specified period, it shall be deemed to have approved the material 

submitted except in those respects that such material in not in conformity with the provisions of this 

Declaration, as to which respects it shall be deemed disapproved. 

7.05  Construction.  Once begun, any improvements, construction, landscaping, or alterations 

approved by the Committee shall be prosecuted to completion.  Building permits shall be obtained as 

required by law. 

 

ARTICLE VIII 

INSURANCE 

8.01  Association Insurance.    The Board shall procure and maintain a policy or policies of property 

insurance, and such other insurance coverages, in at least such amount or amounts as required under 

NRS 116.3113.  Such insurance policy or policies shall name the Association as insured or the benefit of 

the Owners and shall afford protection, to the extent applicable, at least against loss or damage by fire 

and other hazards covered by the standard extended coverage endorsement, and by vandalism, 

malicious mischief, windstorm, and water damage, and such other risks as customarily covered with 

respect to facilities similar in construction, location and use. 

8.02  Unit Owner’s Insurance.  Each Unit Owner shall be responsible to purchase a separate 

homeowner’s insurance policy for protection against loss or damage by fire, and other hazards covered 

by the standard extended coverage endorsement, and by vandalism, malicious mischief, windstorm, and 

water damage, and such other risks as customarily covered with respect to Units similar in construction, 

location and use.  All claims for liability must be submitted first under the homeowner’s insurance 

policy.  The Association will not be required to file claims on the Association’s policy for liability that 

would have been covered under a homeowner’s insurance policy. 

8.03   Liability Insurance.  The Board shall procure and maintain from a policy or policies of liability 

insurance to insure the Association, the Board, The Managing Agent, and employees of the Association 

and the Owners against claims for bodily injury and property damage arising out of the conditions of the 

Common Areas of activities thereon.  Such insurance shall be for such limits as the Board may decide, 

but not less that $1,000,000 for personal injury and property damage arising out of a single occurrence.  



 

Page 12 

Any such coverage procured by the Board shall be without prejudice to the right of the Owners to insure 

their personal liability for their own benefit at their own expense. 

8.04  Additional Insurance; Further General Requirements.  The Board may also procure insurance, 

which shall insure the Common Areas and the Association or the Owners, and others against such 

additional risks as the Board may deem advisable.  Insurance procured and maintained by the Board 

shall not require contribution from insurance held by any of the Owners or their Mortgagees.  Each 

policy of insurance obtained by the Board shall, if reasonably possible provide: 

(a)  A waiver of the insurer’s right of subrogation against the Association, the Owners and 

their respective directors, officers, agent, employees, invitees, and tenants: 

(b)  That it cannot be cancelled, suspended or invalidated due to the conduct of any 

particular Owner or Owners; 

(c)   That it cannot be cancelled suspended or invalidated due to the conduct of the 

Association without a prior written demand that the defect be cured; and 

(d)   That any “no other insurance” clause therein shall not apply with respect to insurance 

maintained individually by any of the Owners. 

8.05  Fidelity Coverage.  The Association shall maintain fidelity coverage to protect against dishonest 

acts on the part of Officers, Directors, Managing Agents, Directors and employees of the Association.  In 

that event such fidelity bonds shall: 

  (a)  Name the Association as obligee; 

  (b)  Such insurance may not contain a conviction requirement, and the minimum amount of 

the policy much not be less than an amount equal to 3 months of aggregate Assessments on all Units 

plus reserves. 

  (c)  Contain waivers of any defense based upon the exclusion of volunteers or persons who 

serve without compensation from any definition of “employee” or similar expression; and 

  (d)  Provide that they ma not be cancelled or substantially modified (including cancellation 

for nonpayment of premium) without at least thirty (30) days proper written notice to the insured. 

8.06   Review of Insurance.  The Board shall periodically, and whenever requested by Owners entitled 

to exercise at least forty percent (40%) of the outstanding votes in the Association, review the adequacy 

of the Association’s insurance program and shall report in writing the conclusions and action taken on 

such review to the Owner of each Unit and to the holder of any Mortgage on any Lot who shall request a 

copy of such report.  Copies of every policy of insurance procured by the Bard shall be available for 

inspection by any Owner or Mortgagee. 

8.07  Other Insurance Provisions.  Notwithstanding anything in this Article VIII to the contrary, any 

insurance required to be obtained by the Association pursuant to Scion VIII of this Article shall be 

required only to the extent such coverage is reasonably obtainable at reasonable rates and is 

customarily obtained with respect to improvement or facilities that have the same or similar 

characteristics of the Common Areas and Units or risks being insured.  If the insurance required by the 



 

Page 13 

Association under this Declaration, or otherwise required by law, is not reasonably available, the 

Association promptly shall cause notice of the fact to be given to all Unit Owners. 

 

ARTICLE IX 

RIGHTS OF MORTGAGES 

9.01  Title and Mortgagee Protection.  A breach of any of the covenants, provisions or requirements   

of this Declaration shall not result in any forfeiture or reversion of title or of any other interest in a Lot 

or ay other portion of the Property.  A breach of any of the covenants, provisions, or requirements of 

this Declaration shall not defeat, impar, or render invalid the lien of or other rights under any Mortgage.  

Unless and until it enters into possession or acquires title pursuant to foreclosure or any arrangement or 

proceeding in lieu thereof, any Mortgagee entered under any Mortgage affecting a Lot or an other 

portion of the Property shall have no obligation to take any action to comply with, and may not be 

compelled to take any action to comply with, any of the covenants, provisions or requirements of this 

Declaration (other than those, if any, concerning a consent or approval to be given by a Mortgagee, in 

the event a Mortgagee’s failure to give same is wrongful).  No amendment to this Declaration shall in 

any way affect the rights of any Mortgagee interested under a mortgage which is in effect at the time of 

the amendment concerned or the rights of any successor in interest or title to such Mortgagee, either 

before or after such Mortgagee or its successor in interest or title to such Mortgagee, either before or 

after such Mortgagee or its successor enters into possession or acquires title pursuant to foreclosure or 

any arrangement or proceeding in lieu thereof, unless such Mortgagee has consented in writing to such 

amendment. 

9.02  Preservation of Common Areas.  The Common Areas shall remain substantially of the same 

character, type and configuration as when such Common Areas became part of the Development.  

Unless the Association shall receive the prior written approval of (a) all first Mortgagees of Lots and (b) 

the Owners of all Lots, the Association shall not be entitled to encumber, sell, or transfer the Common 

Areas, except to grant reasonable easements for use or for utilities and similar or related purposes. 

9.03  Notice of Matters Affecting Security.  The Association shall give written notice to any 

Mortgagee of a Lot requesting such notice whenever:   

(a)  There is any material default by the Owner of the Lot subject to the Mortgage in 

performance of any obligation under this Declaration or the Articles of the Association which is 

not cured within sixty (60) days after default occurs; or  

  (b)  Damage to the Common Areas from any one occurrence exceeds $10,000.00; or  

   

(c)  There is any condemnation or taking by eminent domain of any material portion of the 

Common Areas. 

9.04  Notice of Meetings.  The Board shall give to any Mortgagee of a Lot requesting the same, notice 

of all meetings, of the Association; 



 

Page 14 

 and such Mortgagee shall have the right to designate in writing a representative to attend all such 

meetings. 

9.05  Right to Examine Association Records.  Any Mortgagee shall, upon request, have the same right 

to inspect the books and records of the Association and receive financial statements as the Owner of the 

Lot securing the Mortgage. 

9.06  Rights to Pay Taxes and Charges.  Mortgagees may, jointly or singly, pay taxes or other charges 

which are in default and which may or have become a charge against any portion of the Common Areas, 

and may pay overdue premiums on insurance policies pertaining to the Common Areas, or secure new 

insurance coverage pertaining to the Common Areas on the lapse of a policy; and Mortgagees making 

such payment shall be owed immediate reimbursement therefore from the Association. 

9.07  No Priority Accorded.  No provision of this Declaration gives or may five a Lot Owner or any 

other party priority over any rights or Mortgagees pursuant to their respective Mortgagees in the case 

of a distribution to Lot Owners of insurance proceeds or condemnation awards for loss to or taking of 

Lots and/or the Common Areas. 

9.08  Construction.  In the event another provision or clause of this Declaration deals with the same 

subject matter as is dealt with in any provision or clause of this Article IX, the provision or clause which 

results in the greatest protection and security for a Mortgagee shall control the rights, obligations, or 

limits of authority as the case may be, applicable to the Association with respect to the subject 

concerned. 

 

ARTICLE X 

PARTY WALLS 

10.01  General Rules of Law to Apply.  Each wall to be built as a part of the original construction of the 

Units and placed substantially on a dividing line between Lots shall constitute a party wall and to the 

extent not inconsistent with the Provisions of this Article, the general rules of law regarding party walls 

and liability for damage due to negligence or willful acts or omissions shall apply thereto. 

10.02  Sharing of Repair and Maintenance.  The cost of reasonable repair and maintenance of a party 

wall shall be shared by the Owners who make use of the wall in proportion to such use. 

10.03  Destruction by Fire or Other Casualty.  If a party wall is destroyed or damaged by fire or other 

casualty, any Owner who has used the wall may restore it, and if the Owner of another Lot thereafter 

makes use of the wall, such other Owner shall contribute to the cost of restoration thereof in proportion 

t such use; the foregoing provision shall not prejudice, however the right of any Owner to call for a 

larger contribution from anther Owner s=under any rule of law regarding lability for neglecting or willful 

acts or omissions. 

 

 

 



 

Page 15 

ASSOCIATION BYLAWS 

ARTICLE XI 

BYLAWS 

11.01  Membership.  Every Owner upon acquiring title to a Lot shall automatically become a member 

of the Association and shall remain a member thereof until such time as his ownership ceases for any 

reason. 

11.02  Voting Rights.  The Association shall initially have two (2) classes of voting memberships, votes 

of both classes being of equal value as to all matters. 

(a)  Class A.  Each Owner, including Declarant shall be a Class A member entitled to one (1) 

vote for each Lot in which such member holds the interest required for such Class A 

membership. 

(b)  Class B.  Declarant shall be the only Class B member and shall be entitled to one (1) vote 

for each Association Class A membership outstanding at such time (in addition to any votes to 

which it is entitled as a Class A member) provided however that such Class B membership shall 

lapse and become nullity on the first to happen of the following events: 

(i)  Sixty (60) days after conveyance of 75 percent of the Lots that may be created 

to Unit Owners other than Declarant or 

(ii)  Five years after Declarant has ceased to offer Lots for sale in the ordinary course 

of business or  

(iii)  Upon surrender of Class B membership by Declarant in writing to the 

Association. 

 

11.03  Ownership Restrictions.  With the exception of units owned by Developer, at least sixty percent 

of the Lots must be owner occupied.  No one entity or its members my own more than fifteen percent of 

the total lots, except that Developer may own up to 255 of the Lots after Developer ceases to offer Lots 

for sale in the normal course of business. 

11.04  Place of Meeting.  Meetings of the Association shall be held as such suitable place convenient to 

the Owners as may be designated by the Secretary of the Association in the notice thereof. 

11.05  Annual Meetings.  Annual meetings of the membership of the Association shall be held in the 

month of September of each year following after the conveyance of the first Lot.  At such annual 

meeting there shall be elected Directors of the Board, as needed.  Financial and budget reports shall be 

presented at such meetings as well as other business of the Association properly placed before each 

meeting. 

11.06  Notice of Meetings.  The Secretary shall mail a notice to each meeting stating the purpose as 

well as the time and place o the meeting to each Owner of record at least fifteen but not more than 60 

days prior to such meeting.  Mailing of notice by prepaid U.S. Mail or by delivery in person shall deem 

notice served. 



 

Page 16 

11.07  Quorum.  Owners present in person or by proxy an y membership meeting duly called pursuant 

to notice shall constitute a quorum at all meetings, provided however that such Owners collectively be 

entitled to cast least thirty percent of the total Association votes eligible to vote. 

11.08  Officers.  The Association shall have a President, a Vice President, Secretary and Treasurer all of 

whom shall be elected by and from the Board.  The same person may fill more than one office.  The 

officers shall be elected by the Board for one year terms immediately following each annual meeting of 

Owners at which the new Board has been elected.  Whenever a vacancy arises the Board may elect an 

officer to fill such vacancy until the next regular election.  Officers serve at the pleasure of the Board and 

the Board may remove officer with or without cause. 

 

ARTICLE XII 

BYLAWS 

DUTIES AND POWERS FO THE ASSOCIATION 

12.01  Duties of the Association.  Without limiting any other duties, which may be imposed upon the 

Association by its Articles of Incorporation, Bylaws or the Declaration, the Association shall have the 

obligation and duty to do and perform each and every one of the following for the benefit of the Owners 

and the maintenance and improvement of the Property: 

  (a)  The Association shall accept all Owners as members of the Association. 

  (b)   The Association shall accept title to all Common Areas conveyed to it, provided the 

same is free and clear of liens and encumbrances. 

  (c)  The Association shall maintain repair and replace the landscape in the Common Areas 

  (d)  The Association shall maintain, repair, replace the streets, sewer mains, water lines and 

sidewalks in the Common Areas.  Any sewer lateral backups shall be the liability and 

responsibility of the Association. 

  (e)  In connection with its duties to maintain and repair Common Areas the Association will 

provided maintenance and repair upon the exterior surfaces and roofs of the Units and patio 

fences, including but not limited to, painting, replacing and caring for roofs, gutters, down 

spouts, exterior surfaces, window casings, trim, fences and other exterior improvements except 

glass surfaces. 

  (f)  To the extent not assessed to or paid by the Owners directly, the Association will pay all 

real property taxes and assessments levied upon any portion of the Common Areas. 

  (g)  The Association shall obtain and maintain in force the policies of insurance required of it 

by the provisions of the Declaration. 

12.02  Powers and Authority of the Association  The Association shall have all the powers set forth in 

its Articles of Incorporation and Bylaws together with its central powers as a nonprofit 

corporation, and the power todo any and all things which may be authorized, required, or 

permitted to be done by the Association under and by virtue of the Declaration or the Bylaws, 



 

Page 17 

including the power to levy and collect assessment as hereinafter provided including but not 

limited to the collection of water/sewer assessment and payment of water/sewer charges.   

  (a)  to enter upon any Lot for the purpose of maintaining and repairing such Lot or any 

improvement thereon if for any reason the Owner fails to maintain and repair without liability 

to any Owner for trespass, damage or otherwise. 

  (b)  In fulfilling any of its duties under the Declaration including its duties for the 

maintenance, repair, operation or administration of the Common Areas and Lots or in exercising 

any of its rights to construct improvements or other work upon any of the Common Areas, the 

Association shall have the power and authority to obtain, contract and pay for construction, 

maintenance and repair of Common Areas, Insurance policies, utility related services, services of 

architects, engineers, attorneys, and certified public accountants and such other professional or 

nonprofessional services as the Board may deem desirable.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

   

 

 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The Town Homes at Ruby View – HYDROLOGY 
REPORT 

Type II, 24-hour, 25 year Storm 
 
 

 
 11-24-19



 
 
 
 
 

The Town Homes at Ruby View - Hydrology Report 
Type II, 24-hour, 25 year Storm 

 
 

The proposed 1.30-acre town home development located at 1553 Indian View Heights 
Drive, Elko Nevada was analyzed the Type II, 24-hour, 25-year storm event for both 
existing and proposed conditions using the SCS TR-55 Method.   
 
The areas and grades were determined using the existing topography for this project 
and grading plan for this project.  Existing conditions and proposed conditions 
included drainage areas that are affected by the proposed construction.  Off-site 
drainage areas that are not changed by the new construction were not considered.   
 
This soil type was estimated to Soils Group D. 
 
The run-off, run-off coefficients and precipitation frequencies were calculated using 
Autodesk Storm and Sanitary Sewer Analysis 2018.   
 
The purpose of the study was to demonstrate the difference in existing condition 
flows and proposed condition flows due to the site development.  The total peak 
runoff was increased 0.58 cubic feet per second for the 25-year, 24-hour storm.  
Because of this during the final design stormwater detention will be required.  The 
proposed layout has areas dedicated for this. 
 
The supporting data included in this study is as follows: 
 
1.  Map of Existing Conditions and Proposed Conditions 
2.  Data for Existing Conditions and Proposed Conditions 
 
 



32' at 3:1

150' at 2.0%

150' at 1.3%

INDIAN VIEW HEIGHTS DR.

GRIS
W

OLD
 A

VE
.

EXISTING CONDITIONS
AREA 1



Project Description
StormXML.SPF

Project Options
CFS
Elevation
SCS TR-55
SCS TR-55
Kinematic Wave
YES
NO

Analysis Options
Nov 24, 2019 00:00:00
Nov 25, 2019 00:00:00
Nov 24, 2019 00:00:00
0 days
0 01:00:00 days hh:mm:ss
0 00:05:00 days hh:mm:ss
0 00:05:00 days hh:mm:ss
30 seconds

Number of Elements
Qty
1
1
1
0
1
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

Rainfall Details
SN Rain Gage Data Data Source Rainfall Rain State County Return Rainfall Rainfall

ID Source ID Type Units Period Depth Distribution
(years) (inches)

1 Rain Gage-01 Time Series TS-01 Intensity inches Nevada Elko 25 2.07 SCS Type II 24-hr

        Orifices ....................................................
        Weirs .......................................................
        Outlets .....................................................
Pollutants .........................................................
Land Uses ........................................................

        Inlets ........................................................
        Storage Nodes .........................................
Links..................................................................
        Channels .................................................
        Pipes ........................................................
        Pumps .....................................................

Rain Gages ......................................................
Subbasins.........................................................
Nodes................................................................
        Junctions .................................................
        Outfalls ....................................................
        Flow Diversions .......................................

Start Reporting On ...........................................
Antecedent Dry Days .......................................
Runoff (Dry Weather) Time Step .....................
Runoff (Wet Weather) Time Step ....................
Reporting Time Step ........................................
Routing Time Step ...........................................

Time of Concentration (TOC) Method .............
Link Routing Method ........................................
Enable Overflow Ponding at Nodes .................
Skip Steady State Analysis Time Periods ........

Start Analysis On .............................................
End Analysis On ...............................................

File Name .........................................................
Description .......................................................

C:\Users\lanal\Documents\AutoCAD Projects\Wade Kelly\Hydro\Tentative Map - Hydro.dwg

Flow Units ........................................................
Elevation Type .................................................
Hydrology Method ............................................



Subbasin Summary
SN Subbasin Area Weighted Total Total Total Peak Time of

ID Curve Rainfall Runoff Runoff Runoff Concentration
Number Volume

(ac) (in) (in) (ac-in) (cfs) (days hh:mm:ss)
1 { Hydro}.Area1 1.37 88.00 2.07 1.02 1.40 2.26        0  00:04:19



Node Summary
SN Element Element Invert Ground/Rim Initial Surcharge Ponded Peak Max HGL Max Min Time of Total Total Time

ID Type Elevation (Max) Water Elevation Area Inflow Elevation Surcharge Freeboard Peak Flooded Flooded
Elevation Elevation Attained Depth Attained Flooding Volume

Attained Occurrence
(ft) (ft) (ft) (ft) (ft²) (cfs) (ft) (ft) (ft) (days hh:mm) (ac-in) (min)

1 Out-01 Outfall 0.00 0.00 0.00



Subbasin Hydrology

    Subbasin : { Hydro}.Area1

          Input Data

Area (ac) ........................................................................ 1.37
Weighted Curve Number ............................................... 88.00
Rain Gage ID ................................................................. Rain Gage-01

          Composite Curve Number
 Area Soil Curve
Soil/Surface Description (acres) Group Number
Desert shrub range, Poor 1.37 D 88.00
Composite Area & Weighted CN 1.37 88.00

          Time of Concentration

TOC Method : SCS TR-55

Sheet Flow Equation :

    Tc = (0.007 * ((n * Lf)^0.8)) / ((P^0.5) * (Sf^0.4))

Where :

    Tc = Time of Concentration (hr)
    n   = Manning's roughness
    Lf  = Flow Length (ft)
    P   = 2 yr, 24 hr Rainfall (inches)
    Sf  = Slope (ft/ft)

Shallow Concentrated Flow Equation :

    V  = 16.1345 * (Sf^0.5) (unpaved surface)
    V  = 20.3282 * (Sf^0.5) (paved surface)
    V  = 15.0 * (Sf^0.5) (grassed waterway surface)
    V  = 10.0 * (Sf^0.5) (nearly bare & untilled surface)
    V  = 9.0 * (Sf^0.5) (cultivated straight rows surface)
    V  = 7.0 * (Sf^0.5) (short grass pasture surface)
    V  = 5.0 * (Sf^0.5) (woodland surface)
    V  = 2.5 * (Sf^0.5) (forest w/heavy litter surface)
    Tc = (Lf / V) / (3600 sec/hr)

             Where:

    Tc = Time of Concentration (hr)
    Lf = Flow Length (ft)
    V  = Velocity (ft/sec)
    Sf = Slope (ft/ft)

Channel Flow Equation :

    V  = (1.49 * (R^(2/3)) * (Sf^0.5)) / n
    R  = Aq / Wp
    Tc = (Lf / V) / (3600 sec/hr)

Where :

    Tc = Time of Concentration (hr)
    Lf = Flow Length (ft)
    R  = Hydraulic Radius (ft)
    Aq = Flow Area (ft²)
    Wp = Wetted Perimeter (ft)
    V  = Velocity (ft/sec)
    Sf = Slope (ft/ft)
    n  = Manning's roughness



Subarea Subarea Subarea
Sheet Flow Computations A B C
    Manning's Roughness : 0.40 0.00 0.00
    Flow Length (ft) : 32 0.00 0.00
    Slope (%) : 33 0.00 0.00
    2 yr, 24 hr Rainfall (in) : 1.15 0.00 0.00
    Velocity (ft/sec) : 0.11 0.00 0.00
    Computed Flow Time (min) : 4.69 0.00 0.00

Subarea Subarea Subarea
Shallow Concentrated Flow Computations A B C
    Flow Length (ft) : 150 150 0.00
    Slope (%) : 2 1.3 0.00
    Surface Type : Bare & untilled Bare & untilled Unpaved
    Velocity (ft/sec) : 1.41 1.14 0.00
    Computed Flow Time (min) : 1.77 2.19 0.00
Total TOC (min) ..................4.33

          Subbasin Runoff Results

Total Rainfall (in) ............................................................ 2.07
Total Runoff (in) ............................................................. 1.02
Peak Runoff (cfs) ........................................................... 2.26
Weighted Curve Number ............................................... 88.00
Time of Concentration (days hh:mm:ss) ........................ 0 00:04:20 



          Subbasin : { Hydro}.Area1



INDIAN VIEW HEIGHTS DR.

GRIS
W

OLD
 A

VE
.

23
5'

 a
t 0

.5
%

325' at 1.2%

110 at 0.4%

235 at 5.0%

PROPOSED CONDITIONS
AREA 1

AREA 2



Project Description
Proposed Conditions.SPF

Project Options
CFS
Elevation
SCS TR-55
SCS TR-55
Kinematic Wave
YES
NO

Analysis Options
Nov 24, 2019 00:00:00
Nov 25, 2019 00:00:00
Nov 24, 2019 00:00:00
0 days
0 01:00:00 days hh:mm:ss
0 00:05:00 days hh:mm:ss
0 00:05:00 days hh:mm:ss
30 seconds

Number of Elements
Qty
1
2
2
0
2
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

Rainfall Details
SN Rain Gage Data Data Source Rainfall Rain State County Return Rainfall Rainfall

ID Source ID Type Units Period Depth Distribution
(years) (inches)

1 Rain Gage-01 Time Series TS-01 Intensity inches Nevada Elko 25 2.07 SCS Type II 24-hr

        Orifices ....................................................
        Weirs .......................................................
        Outlets .....................................................
Pollutants .........................................................
Land Uses ........................................................

        Inlets ........................................................
        Storage Nodes .........................................
Links..................................................................
        Channels .................................................
        Pipes ........................................................
        Pumps .....................................................

Rain Gages ......................................................
Subbasins.........................................................
Nodes................................................................
        Junctions .................................................
        Outfalls ....................................................
        Flow Diversions .......................................

Start Reporting On ...........................................
Antecedent Dry Days .......................................
Runoff (Dry Weather) Time Step .....................
Runoff (Wet Weather) Time Step ....................
Reporting Time Step ........................................
Routing Time Step ...........................................

Time of Concentration (TOC) Method .............
Link Routing Method ........................................
Enable Overflow Ponding at Nodes .................
Skip Steady State Analysis Time Periods ........

Start Analysis On .............................................
End Analysis On ...............................................

File Name .........................................................
Description .......................................................

C:\Users\lanal\Documents\AutoCAD Projects\Wade Kelly\Hydro\Tentative Map - Hydro.dwg

Flow Units ........................................................
Elevation Type .................................................
Hydrology Method ............................................



Subbasin Summary
SN Subbasin Area Weighted Total Total Total Peak Time of

ID Curve Rainfall Runoff Runoff Runoff Concentration
Number Volume

(ac) (in) (in) (ac-in) (cfs) (days hh:mm:ss)
1 {Proposed Hydro}.AREA1 0.85 92.06 2.07 1.30 1.11 1.86        0  00:02:19
2 {Proposed Hydro}.AREA2 0.48 92.06 2.07 1.30 0.63 0.98        0  00:05:13



Node Summary
SN Element Element Invert Ground/Rim Initial Surcharge Ponded Peak Max HGL Max Min Time of Total Total Time

ID Type Elevation (Max) Water Elevation Area Inflow Elevation Surcharge Freeboard Peak Flooded Flooded
Elevation Elevation Attained Depth Attained Flooding Volume

Attained Occurrence
(ft) (ft) (ft) (ft) (ft²) (cfs) (ft) (ft) (ft) (days hh:mm) (ac-in) (min)

1 Out-01 Outfall 0.00 0.00 0.00
2 Out-02 Outfall 0.00 0.00 0.00



Subbasin Hydrology

    Subbasin : {Proposed Hydro}.AREA1

          Input Data

Area (ac) ........................................................................ 0.85
Weighted Curve Number ............................................... 92.06
Rain Gage ID ................................................................. Rain Gage-01

          Composite Curve Number
 Area Soil Curve
Soil/Surface Description (acres) Group Number
Paved parking & roofs 0.57 D 98.00
> 75% grass cover, Good 0.28 D 80.00
Composite Area & Weighted CN 0.85 92.06

          Time of Concentration

TOC Method : SCS TR-55

Sheet Flow Equation :

    Tc = (0.007 * ((n * Lf)^0.8)) / ((P^0.5) * (Sf^0.4))

Where :

    Tc = Time of Concentration (hr)
    n   = Manning's roughness
    Lf  = Flow Length (ft)
    P   = 2 yr, 24 hr Rainfall (inches)
    Sf  = Slope (ft/ft)

Shallow Concentrated Flow Equation :

    V  = 16.1345 * (Sf^0.5) (unpaved surface)
    V  = 20.3282 * (Sf^0.5) (paved surface)
    V  = 15.0 * (Sf^0.5) (grassed waterway surface)
    V  = 10.0 * (Sf^0.5) (nearly bare & untilled surface)
    V  = 9.0 * (Sf^0.5) (cultivated straight rows surface)
    V  = 7.0 * (Sf^0.5) (short grass pasture surface)
    V  = 5.0 * (Sf^0.5) (woodland surface)
    V  = 2.5 * (Sf^0.5) (forest w/heavy litter surface)
    Tc = (Lf / V) / (3600 sec/hr)

             Where:

    Tc = Time of Concentration (hr)
    Lf = Flow Length (ft)
    V  = Velocity (ft/sec)
    Sf = Slope (ft/ft)

Channel Flow Equation :

    V  = (1.49 * (R^(2/3)) * (Sf^0.5)) / n
    R  = Aq / Wp
    Tc = (Lf / V) / (3600 sec/hr)

Where :

    Tc = Time of Concentration (hr)
    Lf = Flow Length (ft)
    R  = Hydraulic Radius (ft)
    Aq = Flow Area (ft²)
    Wp = Wetted Perimeter (ft)
    V  = Velocity (ft/sec)
    Sf = Slope (ft/ft)
    n  = Manning's roughness



Subarea Subarea Subarea
Shallow Concentrated Flow Computations A B C
    Flow Length (ft) : 110 235 0.00
    Slope (%) : .4 5 0.00
    Surface Type : Bare & untilled Bare & untilled Unpaved
    Velocity (ft/sec) : 0.63 2.24 0.00
    Computed Flow Time (min) : 2.91 1.75 0.00
Total TOC (min) ..................2.33

          Subbasin Runoff Results

Total Rainfall (in) ............................................................ 2.07
Total Runoff (in) ............................................................. 1.30
Peak Runoff (cfs) ........................................................... 1.86
Weighted Curve Number ............................................... 92.06
Time of Concentration (days hh:mm:ss) ........................ 0 00:02:20 



          Subbasin : {Proposed Hydro}.AREA1



    Subbasin : {Proposed Hydro}.AREA2

          Input Data

Area (ac) ........................................................................ 0.48
Weighted Curve Number ............................................... 92.06
Rain Gage ID ................................................................. Rain Gage-01

          Composite Curve Number
 Area Soil Curve
Soil/Surface Description (acres) Group Number
Paved parking & roofs 0.32 D 98.00
> 75% grass cover, Good 0.16 D 80.00
Composite Area & Weighted CN 0.48 92.06

          Time of Concentration

Subarea Subarea Subarea
Shallow Concentrated Flow Computations A B C
    Flow Length (ft) : 235 325 0.00
    Slope (%) : .5 1.2 0.00
    Surface Type : Bare & untilled Bare & untilled Unpaved
    Velocity (ft/sec) : 0.71 1.10 0.00
    Computed Flow Time (min) : 5.52 4.92 0.00
Total TOC (min) ..................5.22

          Subbasin Runoff Results

Total Rainfall (in) ............................................................ 2.07
Total Runoff (in) ............................................................. 1.30
Peak Runoff (cfs) ........................................................... 0.98
Weighted Curve Number ............................................... 92.06
Time of Concentration (days hh:mm:ss) ........................ 0 00:05:13 



          Subbasin : {Proposed Hydro}.AREA2



LOT 1
2239 SQ FT

LOT 2
2239 SQ FT

LOT 3
2239 SQ FT

LOT 4
2090 SQ FT

LOT 5
2332 SQ FT

LOT 6
2307 SQ FT

LOT 7
2375 SQ FT

LOT 9
2504 SQ FT

LOT 10
2726 SQ FT

REMAINDER
COMMON AREAS
33,082.40 SQ FT

INDIAN VIEW HEIGHTS  DRIVE

GRI
SW

OLD
 A

VE
NU

E

LOT 8
2344 SQ FT

SHEET

OF

VERT:

SCALE
HORIZ:

D
AT

E
R

EV
D

ES
C

R
IP

TI
O

N

D
AT

E:

D
R

AW
N

 B
Y:

C
H

EC
KE

D
 B

Y:

D
ES

IG
N

 B
Y:

JO
B 

N
O

:

D
W

G
 N

O
:

06
-2

01
9

20
19

-1
7

LL
C

LL
C

12
-1

9-
19

1"=20'
N/A

1

EL
KO

, N
EV

AD
A

KE
LL

Y 
BU

IL
D

ER
S,

 L
LC

TH
E 

TO
W

N
 H

O
M

ES
 a

t R
U

BY
 V

IE
W

TE
N

TA
TI

VE
 M

AP
 - 

LA
YO

U
T

12-19-19

(775) 397-2531

ELKO, NEVADA 89801
P.O. BOX 794

CONTACT: LANA L. CARTER, P.E.

CARTER ENGINEERING, LLC

LANA L. CARTER, P.E.

I, LANA L. CARTER, A REGISTERED
PROFESSIONAL CIVIL ENGINEER IN THE STATE
OF NEVADA, DO HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THIS
TENTATIVE PLAT HAS BEEN PREPARED UNDER
MY DIRECTION AND WAS COMPLETED ON THE
26TH DAY OF NOVEMBER, 2019.

CONTACT: WADE KELLY
ELKO, NEVADA 89801

OR LAURA KELLY

209 RAPTOR COURT

(775) 777-3217

KELLY BUILDERS, LLC

4

EMAIL:kellybuilders@frontiernet.net
EMAIL: lanalcarter@live.com

(775) 738-4053

ELKO, NEVADA 89801
640 IDAHO STREET

CONTACT: ROBERT E. MORLEY, P.L.S.

HIGH DESERT ENGINEERING, LLC

EMAIL:  remorley@frontier.net LL
C

1. ZONING: R - SINGLE FAMILY AND MULTIPLE FAMILY RESIDENTIAL
DISTRICT.

2. APN = 001-530-026

3. LEGAL DESCRIPTION = PARCEL 1 OF FILE NUMBER 707194, IN THE
OFFICE OF THE ELKO COUNTY RECORDER.

4.  TOTAL AREA  PARCEL AREA IS 1.300 ACRES.

5.  10 LOTS TOTAL WITH ONE REMAINDER LOT.

6.  NO DEED RESTRICTIONS.

7. THE EXISTING PARCEL IS 1553 INDIAN VIEW HEIGHTS DRIVE.

8.  PARCEL TO BE SUBDIVIDED IS IN LOCATED IN SECTION 10
OF TOWNSHIP 34 NORTH, RANGE 55 EAST M.D.B.& M.

9. SUBDIVISION TO BE SERVED BY THE FOLLOWING UTILITY COMPANIES
CITY OF ELKO - WATER, SEWER & STORM DRAIN
SW GAS - NATURAL GAS
FRONTIER - COMMUNICATIONS AND TELEPHONE
NV ENERGY - ELECTRICAL
SATVIEW BROAD BAND - COMMUNICATIONS AND TELEVISION
ELKO SANITATION - WASTE DISPOSAL

10. THIS PROPERTY IS LOCATED IN ZONE X (AREA OF MINIMAL FLOOD
HAZARD) PER FEMA FIRM MAP 32007C5607E EFFECTIVE 9-4-13

10. THE ESTIMATED SANITARY SEWER CONTRIBUTION IS 350 GPD/LOT.  10
LOTS x 350 GPD/LOT =  3,500 GPD.

11. THE ESTIMATED WATER DEMAND IS 1.12 AC-FT/YEAR/LOT.
10 LOTS x 1.12 AC-FT/YEAR/LOT = 11.20 AC-FT/YEAR.

12. TOTAL GROSS ACREAGE                      1.297 ACRES (56,477.40 SF)

TOTAL RIGHT OF WAY  ACREAGE
       OFFERED FOR DEDICATION     0.000 ACRES

TOTAL LOT AREAS   0.537 ACRES (23,395.00 SF)

TOTAL NET ACREAGE                            0.760 ACRES (33,082.40 SF)

13. THERE ARE NO NEW EASEMENTS TO BE DEDICATED.

14. ON SITE DRIVEWAY AND UTILITIES WILL BE PRIVATE AND MAINTAINED BY
THE HOME OWNERS ASSOCIATION.

15. IN ADDITION TO A 2 CAR GARAGE AND 2 CAR PARKING PAD PER EACH
DWELLING, AN ADDITIONAL 9 PARKING SPACES ARE PROPOSED FOR
GUESTS.

16. SETBACK REQUIREMENTS: FRONT YARD = 15 FEET
INTERIOR SIDE YARD = 7 FEET
REAR YARD =  20 FEET

17. THE TOPOGRAPHY AND BOUNDARY SHOWN HERE IS PER A SURVEY
PROVIDED BY HIGH DESERT ENGINEERING ON 10-16-19 PERFORMED
UNDER THE DIRECTION OF DUANE MERRILL, P.L.S.

18. ALL UNITS WILL HAVE FENCED YARDS WITH A 5' WIDE GATE FOR FOR
EMERGENCY ACCESS.

1 ................ TENTATIVE MAP - LAYOUT

2 ................ UTILITY PLAN

3 ................ GRADING PLAN

4 ................ CUT AND FILL GRID

12
-1

9-
19

1
M

O
D

IF
Y 

D
W

 F
O

R
 L

O
TS

 4
, 5

, 6
12

-1
9-

19
2

C
H

AN
G

E 
R

O
W

 S
ID

EW
AL

K 
FR

O
M

 4
' T

O
 5

' W
ID

E
12

-1
9-

19
3

AD
D

 N
O

TE
 1

8



INDIAN VIEW HEIGHTS  DRIVE

GRI
SW

OLD
 A

VE
NU

E

LOT 1

LOT 2

LOT 3

LOT 4

LOT 5 LOT 6 LOT 7 LOT 8
LOT 9

LOT 10

SHEET

OF

VERT:

SCALE
HORIZ:

D
AT

E
R

EV
D

ES
C

R
IP

TI
O

N

D
AT

E:

D
R

AW
N

 B
Y:

C
H

EC
KE

D
 B

Y:

D
ES

IG
N

 B
Y:

JO
B 

N
O

:

D
W

G
 N

O
:

06
-2

01
9

20
19

-1
7

LL
C

LL
C

12
-1

9-
19

1"=20'
N/A

2

EL
KO

, N
EV

AD
A

KE
LL

Y 
BU

IL
D

ER
S,

 L
LC

TH
E 

TO
W

N
 H

O
M

ES
 a

t R
U

BY
 V

IE
W

TE
N

TA
TI

VE
 M

AP
 - 

U
TI

LI
TY

 P
LA

N

12-19-19

4

LL
C

1. ALL WATER MAINS SHALL BE AWWA C900, DR 18 WATER PIPE.

2. ALL WATER SERVICE LINES SHALL BE AWWA C-901, 1" IPS 200 PSI
POLYETHYLENE.

3. ALL WATER LINE FITTINGS SHALL BE DUCTILE IRON AWWA C-110 AND AWWA
C-153.

4. ALL WATER LINES SHALL BE PLACED WITH 42" OF MINIMUM COVER.

5. ALL METERS SHALL BE 1 INCH.

6. ALL NEW FIRE HYDRANTS WILL BE EQUIPPED WITH STORZ FITTINGS.

7. A MINIMUM OF 18" INCHES SEPARATION WILL BE ALLOWED BETWEEN WATER
TAPS AS REQUIRED BY THE CITY OF ELKO UTILITIES DEPARTMENT.

8. A MINIMUM OF 2 FOOT SEPARATION WILL BE ALLOWED BETWEEN WATER
TAPS AND HYDRANT TAPS AS REQUIRED BY THE CITY OF ELKO UTILITIES
DEPARTMENT.

9. WATER AND SEWER LATERALS WILL BE PLACED IN SEPARATE TRENCHES
AND LOCATED AT LEAST 48" APART MEASURE FROM OUTSIDE DIAMETERS
PER NAC 445A.6716.

10. INSTALL SAMPLE STATION AT LOCATION DETERMINED BY CITY OF ELKO.  THE
SAMPLING STATION SHALL BE USA BLUEBOOK MODEL EH101 (301D) ABOVE
GRADE WITH GREEN ENCLOSURE AND 48" BURY DEPTH.

11. HOT TAPS SHALL BE PERFORMED BY THE CITY OF ELKO UTILITIES
DEPARTMENT.  THE CONTRACTOR SHALL SUPPLY TRENCH AND MATERIALS
FOR THE HOT TAP.  IT SHALL BE THE CONTRACTORS RESPONSIBILITY TO
COORDINATE THIS WORK WITH THE CITY OF ELKO.

12. VERTICAL AND HORIZONTAL SEPARATION OF ALL WATER AND SEWER
(SANITARY OR STORM) UTILITIES SHALL BE MAINTAINED PER NAC SECTION
445A.6715  -  SECTION 445A.6718 AND THE BUREAU OF SAFE DRINKING
WATER (BSDW) GUIDANCE FOR AREAS REQUIRING MITIGATION FOR WATER
AND SEWER SEPARATION, EDITION 1.0, UNLESS OTHERWISE APPROVED BY
THE DESIGN ENGINEER OR BSDW.

13. ANY OPENINGS IN UNFINISHED PIPING AND APPURTENANCES MUST BE
SEALED WATERTIGHT AT THE END OF EACH WORKING DAY.

14. ALL MATERIALS AND CONSTRUCTION METHODS SHALL BE IN ACCORDANCE
WITH APPLICABLE AWWA STANDARDS.

15. THE MAXIMUM JOINT DEFLECTION SHALL NOT EXCEED THE MANUFACTURES
SPECIFICATIONS.  FOR TYTON JOINT PIPE THIS IS 5° OR 19" FOR AN 18 FOOT
LENGTH OF PIPE OR 21" FOR A 20 FOOT LENGTH OF PIPE.  THE RADIUS
PRODUCED IS 206 FEET FOR AN 18 FOOT LENGTH OF PIPE OR 229 FEET FOR
A 20 FOOT LENGTH OF PIPE.  THE CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE
FOR VERIFYING THE MAXIMUM ALLOWABLE JOINT DEFLECTION FOR THE
BRAND OF PIPING USED AND NOT TO EXCEED THIS.

16. ALL MATERIALS IN CONTACT WITH POTABLE WATER MUST BE NSF/ANSI 61
CERTIFIED AS LEAD FREE AND COMPATIBLE WITH DRINKING WATER.

17. BEFORE BEING CERTIFIED BY AN ENGINEER ACCEPTED BY THE CITY OF
ELKO, ANY NEW WATER SYSTEMS, EXTENSIONS, REPLACEMENTS IN
EXISTING SYSTEMS AND VALVED SECTIONS SHALL BE DISINFECTED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH AWWA C-651 (DISINFECTING WATER MAINS) AND BE
PRESSURE TESTED IN ACCORDANCE WITH NAC 445A 67145.7 (A) AND (B) AND
AWWA C-605.  THE DISPOSAL OF HIGHLY CHLORINATED WATER MUST BE
COORDINATED WITH NEVADA DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL
PROTECTION, BUREAU OF WATER POLLUTION CONTROL.

1. ALL SEWER LINES SHALL BE SDR-35 P.V.C.

2. IN NO CASE SHALL A LATERAL CONNECT TO THE SEWER MAIN DIRECTLY ON
THE TOP OF THE PIPE.

3. SEWER LATERALS TO BE 4" Ø AND SHALL HAVE A MINIMUM SLOPE OF 2%
FOR 100-FEET.

1. ALL CULVERTS SHALL BE ADS N-12 WT OR APPROVED EQUAL.

1. SANITARY SEWER IS PROPOSED AS PUBLIC TO FIRST NEW MANHOLE, THEN
ALL ONSITE SEWER IS PROPOSED AS PRIVATE.

2. THE WATER IS PROPOSED AS PUBLIC TO THE WATER METER. THE WATER
LINE FROM THE METER TO THE TOWN HOMES IS PROPOSED AS PRIVATE.

3. ONE METER IS PROPOSED FOR THIS DEVELOPMENT WITH THE UTILITY
SERVICES PAID FOR BY THE HOME OWNER ASSOCIATION.

4. THE SIZE OF THE PROPOSED WATER LINE MAY CHANGE FOR FINAL DESIGN
DEPENDING ON THE FIXTURE COUNTS OF THE TOWN HOMES.

5. AN IRRIGATION TAP WITH BACK FLOW DEVICE SHALL BE PROVIDED ON THE
PRIVATE SIDE OF THE METER AS PART OF FINAL DESIGN.

12
-1

9-
19

1
M

O
D

IF
Y 

D
W

 F
O

R
 L

O
TS

 4
, 5

, 6
12

-1
9-

19
2

C
H

AN
G

E 
R

O
W

 S
ID

EW
AL

K 
FR

O
M

 4
' T

O
 5

' W
ID

E
12

-1
9-

19
3

AD
D

 N
O

TE
 1

8,
 S

H
EE

T 
C

1



INDIAN VIEW HEIGHTS  DRIVE

GRI
SW

OLD
 A

VE
NU

E

LOT 1

LOT 5 LOT 8
LOT 9

LOT 10

LOT 2

LOT 3

LOT 4

LOT 6 LOT 7

SHEET

OF

VERT:

SCALE
HORIZ:

D
AT

E
R

EV
D

ES
C

R
IP

TI
O

N

D
AT

E:

D
R

AW
N

 B
Y:

C
H

EC
KE

D
 B

Y:

D
ES

IG
N

 B
Y:

JO
B 

N
O

:

D
W

G
 N

O
:

06
-2

01
9

20
19

-1
7

LL
C

LL
C

12
-1

9-
19

1"=20'
N/A

3

EL
KO

, N
EV

AD
A

KE
LL

Y 
BU

IL
D

ER
S,

 L
LC

TH
E 

TO
W

N
 H

O
M

ES
 a

t R
U

BY
 V

IE
W

TE
N

TA
TI

VE
 M

AP
 - 

G
R

AD
IN

G

12-19-19

4

LL
C

1. THE ESTIMATED EARTHWORK QUANTITIES ARE AS FOLLOWS:

UNCLASSIFIED EXCAVATION = 270 CY CUT
UNCLASSIFIED EMBANKMENT = 2,670 CY FILL

THE ABOVE QUANTITIES ARE BANK CUBIC YARDS.   SHRINK OR SWELL HAS NOT BEEN
CONSIDERED.

THE ABOVE QUANTITIES ARE TO SUBGRADE INCLUDING EXCAVATION FOR CRAWL
SPACES AND A 3 INCHES FOR CLEARING AND GRUBBING OF THE EXISTING GROUND.

2. ADD 5200 FEET TO SPOT ELEVATIONS.

3. THE FINAL GRADING WILL BE DONE TO ELIMINATE CROSS LOT DRAINAGE.  ALL LOTS
ARE TO HAVE GRADED AND DEFINED SWALES ALONG YARD PROPERTY LINES
REPORTING TO THE COMMON AREAS AND THEN TO EXISTING DRAINAGES.

4. SLOPES ADJACENT TO STREETS SHALL NOT EXCEED 3:1.

5. INTERIOR SLOPES SHALL NOT EXCEED 2:1.

6. THIS PROJECT REQUIRES IMPORT EMBANKMENT.

7. THE EXISTING GROUND TOPOGRAPHY SHOWN ON THIS PLAN IS FROM A SURVEY
PROVIDED BY HIGH DESERT ENGINEERING ON 10-16-19.

8. THIS PROJECT WILL REQUIRE STORM WATER PERMITTING WITH NEVADA DEPARTMENT
OF TRANSPORTATION.

9. THE AVERAGE SLOPE OF THIS SUBDIVISION PER 3-2-28 B IS 6.17% WHICH IS LESS THAN
15% AND THEREFORE THIS IS NOT A HILLSIDE AREA.

12
-1

9-
19

1
M

O
D

IF
Y 

D
W

 F
O

R
 L

O
TS

 4
, 5

, 6
12

-1
9-

19
2

C
H

AN
G

E 
R

O
W

 S
ID

EW
AL

K 
FR

O
M

 4
' T

O
 5

' W
ID

E
12

-1
9-

19
3

AD
D

 N
O

TE
 1

8,
 S

H
EE

T 
C

1



INDIAN VIEW HEIGHTS  DRIVE

GRI
SW

OLD
 A

VE
NU

E

LOT 1

LOT 2

LOT 3

LOT 4

LOT 5 LOT 6 LOT 7 LOT 8
LOT 9

LOT 10

SHEET

OF

VERT:

SCALE
HORIZ:

D
AT

E
R

EV
D

ES
C

R
IP

TI
O

N

D
AT

E:

D
R

AW
N

 B
Y:

C
H

EC
KE

D
 B

Y:

D
ES

IG
N

 B
Y:

JO
B 

N
O

:

D
W

G
 N

O
:

06
-2

01
9

20
19

-1
7

LL
C

LL
C

12
-1

9-
19

1"=20'
N/A

4

EL
KO

, N
EV

AD
A

KE
LL

Y 
BU

IL
D

ER
S,

 L
LC

TH
E 

TO
W

N
 H

O
M

ES
 a

t R
U

BY
 V

IE
W

TE
N

TA
TI

VE
 M

AP
 - 

C
U

T 
& 

FI
LL

 G
R

ID

4

LL
C

12-19-19

12
-1

9-
19

1
M

O
D

IF
Y 

D
W

 F
O

R
 L

O
TS

 4
, 5

, 6
12

-1
9-

19
2

C
H

AN
G

E 
R

O
W

 S
ID

EW
AL

K 
FR

O
M

 4
' T

O
 5

' W
ID

E
12

-1
9-

19
3

AD
D

 N
O

TE
 1

8,
 S

H
EE

T 
C

1



MAIN FLOOR PLAN
SCALE: 1/4"=1'-0" 1216 S.F.

16' x 8' STEEL GARAGE DOOR

3'-0"

5' TUB WITH
SHOWER

3
'-0

"

2'-6
"2'-6"

SHOWER

W. D.

5068 SLIDING DOOR

PANT
RY

D
.W

.

RANGE

R
E

F
.

K
IT

C
H

E
N

DINING

FAMILY

MASTER
BEDROOM

GARAGE
ENTRY

BEDROOM10
'-0

"

10'-4"

2
1'-

0
"

4
6

'-0
"

37'-0"

F
U

R
N

.50
GAL.
W.H.

4'-11"

4'-0"

13'-3"

BEDROOM

3'-0
"

COAT

2'-6
"2'-6"

2'-6" BARN
STYLE DOOR

WALK-IN

2'-6
" 2'-6"

2'-6
" 2'-6"

2'-4
"

LINEN

2'-4"

2'-0"

COVERED
PORCH

13'-5" 10'-4" 12'-3"

12
'-8

" 10
'-0

"
2

'-4
"

3
'-6

"
7'

-1
0

" 4
'-8

"

5'-0" 2'-10"

5'-8" 8'-11"

7'
-0

"
4

'-0
"

4
'-2

"
2

'-1
0

"
12

'-8
"

20'-0"

2
'-0

"
9

'-6
"

2
0

'-1
0

"

80
1.

 7
06

-3
94

3 
   

 F
A

X
: 8

01
-2

80
-7

17
4

9
3
3
8
 W

is
t
e
r
ia

 W
a
y

W
e
s
t
 J

o
r
d
a
n
, 
U

t
a
h

De
sig

n 
Gr

ou
p, 

In
c

T 
 K



Agenda Item # I.A.3 

Created on 6/11/2019  Planning Commission Action Sheet 

Elko City Planning Commission 
Agenda Action Sheet 

 

1. Review, consideration and possible recommendation to City Council for Rezone No. 

5-19, filed by Koinonia Development LP, for a change in zoning from C (General 

Commercial), PQP (Public, Quasi-Public) and RMH (Mobile Home Park and 

Mobile Home Subdivision) to CT (Commercial Transitional) zoning district, 

approximately 4.008 acres of property, and matters related thereto. FOR 

POSSIBLE ACTION 

 

2. Meeting Date:  January 7, 2020 

 

3. Agenda Category: PUBLIC HEARINGS,  

 

4. Time Required: 15 Minutes 

 

5. Background Information: This rezone would bring the zone into conformance with 

the Master Plan Land Use designation.  
 

6. Business Impact Statement: Not Required 

 

7. Supplemental Agenda Information: Application, Staff Memo  

 

8. Recommended Motion: Forward a recommendation to City Council to adopt a 

resolution which approves Rezone No. 5-19 based on facts and findings as presented 

in Staff Report dated December 6, 2019. 
 

9. Findings: See Staff Report dated December 6, 2019 

 

10. Prepared By: Cathy Laughlin, City Planner 

 

11. Agenda Distribution:  Koinonia Development LP 

207 Brookwood Drive 

Elko, NV 89801 

elkoluke@gmail.com 

johns.koinonia@gmail.com 

 

 

 





Page 1 of 5

CITY OF ELKO STAFF REPORT

MEMO DATE: December 6, 2019
PLANNING COMMISSION DATE: January 7, 2020
APPLICATION NUMBER: Rezone 5-19
APPLICANT: Koinonia Development LP
PROJECT DESCRIPTION: Zone amendment from C, PQP and RMH to CT
ADDITIONAL APPLICATIONS: CUP 12-19 & TM 14-19

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

RECOMMEND APPROVAL, subject to findings of fact, and conditions as stated in this report.

City of Elko
1751 College Avenue

Elko, NV  89801
(775) 777-7160

FAX (775) 777-7119



REZONE 5-19
Koinonia Development LP
APN: 001-610-096,097,098,099

Page 2 of 5

PROJECT INFORMATION

PARCEL NUMBER: 001-610-096, 097, 098, & 099 as well as a portion
of 001-610-075

PARCEL SIZE: 60.75 acres

EXISTING ZONING: C- General Commercial & PQP- Public, Quasi-
Public

MASTER PLAN DESIGNATION: (MU-NGHBHD) Mixed Use Neighborhood

EXISTING LAND USE: Undeveloped

NEIGHBORHOOD CHARACTERISTICS:
 The property is surrounded by:

 North: Residential Mobile Home (RMH) / Developed
 Northwest: Commercial (C) / Developed
 South: Public Quasi-Public (PQP) / Developed
 Northeast: Residential Mobile Home (RMH) / Developed
 Southeast: Commercial (C) / Developed

PROPERTY CHARACTERISTICS:
 The area is currently undeveloped.
 The area has slight sloping to the South.
 The area is accessed from North 5th Street

MASTER PLAN AND CITY CODE SECTIONS:

Applicable Master Plans and City Code Sections are:

 City of Elko Master Plan – Land Use Component
 City of Elko Master Plan – Transportation Component
 City of Elko Redevelopment Plan
 City of Wellhead Protection Plan
 City of Elko Zoning – Section 3-2-4 Establishment of Zoning Districts
 City of Elko Zoning – Section 3-2-9 CC, CT Commercial Districts
 City of Elko Zoning – Section 3-2-21  Amendments
 City of Elko Zoning – Section 3-8 Flood Plain Management

BACKGROUND:
1. The property is owned by Koinonia Development LP.
2. The rezone includes all of APN 001-610-096,097,098,& 099 plus ½ of the North 5th

Street rights-of-way and a small portion of 001-610-075 which they are purchasing from
the City of Elko

3. The area fronts North 5th Street.



REZONE 5-19
Koinonia Development LP
APN: 001-610-096,097,098,099

Page 3 of 5

4. City utilities are located in the immediate vicinity.
5. Other non-city utilities are located in the immediate area.
6. The application for rezone is based on an application for a Conditional Use Permit for the

development of townhomes and the Tentative Map that was submitted for the Mountain
View Townhomes Subdivision.

MASTER PLAN:

Land use:

1. Land Use is shown as Neighborhood Mixed Use.
2. Supporting zone districts for Neighborhood Mixed Use are Convenience Commercial

(CC) and Commercial Transitional (CT).
3. Objective 1: Promote a diverse mix of housing options to meet the needs of a variety of

lifestyles, incomes, and age groups.
4. Objective 6: Encourage multiple scales of commercial development to serve the needs of

the region, the community, and individual neighborhoods.
5. Objective 8: Encourage new development that does not negatively impact County-wide

natural systems, or public/federal lands such as waterways, wetlands, drainages,
floodplains etc., or pose a danger to human health and safety.

The proposed zone district is in conformance with the Land Use Component of the Master Plan.

Transportation:

1. The area will be accessed from North 5th Street.
2. North 5th Street is classified in the Transportation Component as a Minor Arterial.
3. The property has pedestrian access along North 5th Street.

The proposed zone district is compatible with the Transportation Component of the Master Plan
and is consistent with the existing transportation infrastructure.

ELKO REDEVELOPMENT PLAN:

The property is not located within the Redevelopment Area.

ELKO WELLHEAD PROTECTION PLAN:

1. The property sits within the 20 year capture zone for the City of Elko wells.

The proposed zone district is in conformance with wellhead protection plan.

SECTION 3-2-4 Establishment of Zoning Districts:

1. No building, structure or land shall hereafter be used or occupied and no building or
structure or part thereof shall hereafter be erected, constructed, moved, or structurally
altered, unless in conformity with all regulations specified in this subsection for the
district in which it is located.

2. No building or other structure shall hereafter be erected or altered:
a. To exceed the heights required by the current City Airport Master Plan;



REZONE 5-19
Koinonia Development LP
APN: 001-610-096,097,098,099

Page 4 of 5

b. To accommodate or house a greater number of families than as permitted in this
chapter;
c. To occupy a greater percentage of lot area; or
d. To have narrower or smaller rear yards, front yards, side yards or other open spaces,
than required in this title; or in any other manner contrary to the provisions of this
chapter.

3. No part of a required yard, or other open space, or off street parking or loading space,
provided in connection with any building or use, shall be included as part of a yard, open
space, or off street parking or loading space similarly required for any other building.

4. No yard or lot existing on the effective date hereof shall be reduced in dimension or area
below the minimum requirements set forth in this title. The property meets the area
requirements for the proposed zone district.

The proposed zone district is in conformance with Elko City Code Section 3-2-4(B).

SECTION 3-2-9 (B) –Commercial Transitional Zoning District

1. As the property develops, it will be required to be in conformance with Section 3-2-9 (B).

The proposed zone district is in conformance with Elko City Code Section 3-2-9 (B).

SECTION 3-2-21:

The application is in conformance with Elko City Code 3-2-21 with the filing of this application.

SECTION 3-8:

The proposed zone district is not located in a designated Special Flood Hazard Area (SFHA).

FINDINGS:

1. The proposed zone district is in conformance with the Land Use Component of the
Master Plan.

2. The proposed zone district is compatible with the Transportation Component of the
Master Plan and is consistent with the existing transportation infrastructure.

3. The property is not located within the Redevelopment Area.

4. The proposed zone district and resultant land use is in conformance with City Wellhead
Protection Plan.

5. The proposed zone district is in conformance with Elko City Code Section 3-2-4(B).

6. The proposed zone district is in conformance with Elko City Code Section 3-2-9(B).

7. The application is in conformance with Elko City Code 3-2-21.



REZONE 5-19
Koinonia Development LP
APN: 001-610-096,097,098,099

Page 5 of 5

8. The proposed zone district is not located in a designated Special Flood Hazard Area
(SFHA).

9. Development under the proposed zone district will not adversely impact natural systems,
or public/federal lands such as waterways, wetlands, drainages, floodplains etc., or pose a
danger to human health and safety.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

Staff recommends this item be CONDITIONALLY APPROVED with the following condition:

1. Resolution for the zone amendment not to be signed by the mayor until after the Deed
and BLA for the Land Sale 1-19, selling a portion of APN 001-610-075 from the City of
Elko to Koinonia Development LP., be recorded.



























Agenda Item # I.B.1 

Created on 11/26/2019  Planning Commission Action Sheet 

Elko City Planning Commission 
Agenda Action Sheet 

 

1. Title: Review, consideration, and possible action to initiate an amendment to the 

City of Elko Master Plan, specifically amending the Proposed Future Land Use Plan 

Atlas Map 8, Land Use Component Corresponding Zoning Districts, Transportation 

Component Best Practice 2.3 and Roadway Classifications, Existing Functional 

Classification Atlas Map 11 and Atlas Map 12, and matters related thereto. FOR 

POSSIBLE ACTION 

 

2. Meeting Date: January 7, 2020 

 

3. Agenda Category: MISCELLANEOUS ITEMS, PETITIONS, AND COMMUNICATIONS 

 

4. Time Required: 10 Minutes 

 

5. Background Information:  

 

6. Business Impact Statement: Not Required 

 

7. Supplemental Agenda Information: 

 

8. Recommended Motion: Move to initiate an amendment to the City of Elko Master 

Plan and direct staff to bring the item back as a resolution and public hearing. 
 

9. Prepared By: Cathy Laughlin, City Planner 

 

10. Agenda Distribution:  



CITY OF ELKO
Planning Department

1751 College Avenue · Elko, Nevada 89801 · (775) 777-7160 · Fax (775) 777-7119

Website: www.elkocity.com
Email: planning@ci.elko.nv.us

Memorandum
To: Planning Commission
From: Cathy Laughlin –City Planner
Date: December 17, 2019
Meeting Date: Tuesday, January 7, 2020

Agenda Item:

1. Review, consideration, and possible action to initiate an amendment to the City of
Elko Master Plan, specifically amending the Proposed Future Land Use Plan Atlas
Map 8, Land Use Component Corresponding Zoning Districts, Transportation
Component Best Practice 2.3 and Roadway Classifications, Existing Functional
Classification Atlas Map 11 and Atlas Map 12, and matters related thereto. FOR
POSSIBLE ACTION

Additional Information:

Proposed Change #1:
The City of Elko Master Plan Future Land Use Plan Atlas Map #8 designates APN 006-09M-003
as Low Density Residential similar to many Elko County parcels contiguous to the City of Elko
Boundary. This Master Plan amendment would change the land use designation for that parcel to
medium density residential similar to the designation on the north, west and east sides of the
parcel and provides a more uniform land use boundary at this location.

Proposed Change #2



We are proposing to add RB – Residential Business District under the corresponding zoning
districts of Neighborhood Mixed Use to bring that zoning district into conformance with the
Master Plan Land Use Component.

Proposed Change #3
Transportation Component Best Practice 2.3 Table 8 currently conflicts with Elko City Code 3-
2-17 for distance requirements between driveways and to intersections.

Proposed Change #4
College Avenue is currently in the Transportation Component Roadway Classification schedule
as a Minor Arterial from 9th Street to Idaho Street.  We are proposing to change the classification
from 9th the 12th to a Residential Collector as the traffic count history from 2002 to 2018 doesn’t
justify the level of service for a Minor Arterial.

Proposed Change #5
With the proposed change in Roadway Classification for proposed change #4, Atlas Map 11 and
Atlas Map 12 would be required to be changed as well.



 

 

Proposed Change to Atlas Map #8; 

Currently Low Density Residential and proposed Medium Density Residential 

 



__________________________________________________________________________ Land Use 

 Land Use page 19

apartments, townhomes, condominiums, etc. Uses of land must comply 
with the Elko City Code, and must be compatible with, and not frustrate, 
this Master Plan’s goals and policies.  
  
 
Corresponding zoning districts:   

• C  General Commercial (with revisions) 
 
 
Neighborhood Mixed Use 
Neighborhood Mixed-Use are areas designated on the Elko Future Land 
Use Map intended for higher density residential development combined 
with neighborhood scale commercial activity. This designation features 
commercial uses such as grocery stores, corner stores, coffee shops, 
bookstores, video rentals, barber shops, hair salons, bakeries and 
bicycle repair. The Master Plan Land Use Map identifies several general 
locations for Neighborhood Mixed-Use development.  
 
Housing within this designation will range from higher density multi-family 
housing around the commercial core of the neighborhoods to medium 
density residential development away from the core.  Uses of land must 
comply with the Elko City Code, and must be compatible with, and not 
frustrate, this Master Plan’s goals and policies.  
 
 
Corresponding zoning districts:   

• CC  Convenience Commercial 

• CT  Commercial Transitional 

• RB  Residential Business 
 
 
General Industrial 
This land use designation includes light to heavy industrial type land 
uses as well as some of the more intense commercial uses. Land use 
activity in this category may include research and development, clean 
technology assembly and production as well as more intense industrial 
uses. It should be noted that these uses have some impact on 
surrounding areas in terms of noise, odor, dust or other nuisances that 
would likely extend beyond the property lines. Uses of land must comply 
with the Elko City Code, and must be compatible with, and not frustrate, 
this Master Plan’s goals and policies.  
 
 
Corresponding zoning districts:   

• LI  Light Industrial 

• IC  Industrial Commercial 

• GI  General Industrial 
 
 
Business Park Industrial 
This land use designation identifies future employment centers, and 
specifically those targeting high-technology, research, education, and 
training institutions. Light industrial uses are appropriate within this 
designation, provided there are no nuisances (odor, noise, dust) which 



Table 8
ACCESS MANAGEMENT STANDARDS

Roadway
Functional

Classification

Signal
Spacing

Driveway
Spacing

Left-Turns
from

Roadways
and

Driveways

Median
Treatment

Other

Mixed
Use/Main

Street Major
Arterial

1/2 Mile
desired

1/3 Mile
minimum

350 ft.

(right in/out
only with

deceleration
lane)

Only at Signal
or Major

Unsignalized
Intersection/

Driveway

Raised
Median or

TWLTL

- No more than one
driveway per property;
joint driveways are
recommended

- Left turn in at major
driveways/unsignalized
roadways okay

Industrial
Major

Arterial

1/2 Mile
desired

1/3 Mile
minimum

350 ft.

(right in/out
only with

deceleration
lane)

Only at Signal
or Major

Unsignalized
Intersection/

Driveway

TWLTL

- No more than one
driveway per property;
joint driveways are
recommended

- Left turn in at major
driveways/unsignalized
roadways okay

Commercial
Major

Arterial

1/2 Mile
desired

1/3 Mile
minimum

350 feet

(right in/out
only with

deceleration
lane)

Only at Signal
or Major

Unsignalized
Intersection/

Driveway

Raised
Median or

TWLTL

- No more than one
driveway per property;
joint driveways are
recommended

- Left turn in at major
driveways/unsignalized
roadways okay

Mixed
Use/Main

Street Minor
Arterial

1/2 Mile
desired

1/3 Mile
minimum

250 feet To Be
Determined*

Raised
Median or

TWLTL

- Do not offset driveways
- A maximum of one full

access driveway per
property

Industrial
Minor

Arterial

1/2 Mile
desired

1/3 Mile
minimum

250 feet To Be
Determined* TWLTL

- Do not offset driveways
- A maximum of one full

access driveway per
property

Commercial
Minor

Arterial

1/2 Mile
desired

1/3 Mile
minimum

250 feet To Be
Determined*

Raised
Median or

TWLTL

- Do not offset driveways
- A maximum of one full

access driveway per
property



Residential
Minor

Arterial

1/2 Mile
desired

1/3 Mile
minimum

250 feet To Be
Determined*

Raised
Median or

TWLTL

- Do not offset driveways
- A maximum of one full

access driveway per
property

Mixed
Use/Main

Street
Collector

1/4 Mile
desired

1/5 Mile
minimum

150 feet Yes
Raised

Median or
TWLTL

- Do not offset driveways
- A maximum of one full

access driveway per
property

Industrial
Collector

1/4 Mile
desired

1/5 Mile
minimum

150 feet Yes None
Required

- Do not offset driveways
- A maximum of one full

access driveway per
property

Commercial
Collector

1/4 Mile
desired

1/5 Mile
minimum

150 feet Yes
Raised

Median or
TWLTL

- Do not offset driveways
- A maximum of one full

access driveway per
property

Residential
Collector

1/4 Mile
desired

1/5 Mile
minimum

75 feet Yes None
Required None

Notes:  TWLTL = Two way left turn lane
Sources: Fehr & Peers, 2010

*Additional research needed.  Will be completed prior to public hearings.



__________________________________________________________________________ Transportation

Transportation page 6

Rural Roadways

Rural Roadways provide direct access to residential properties located
within the Residential Suburban (RS) zoning district. Rural Roadways
typically serve lower traffic volumes under 600 vehicles per day,
roadways with a traffic volume over 600 vehicles per day should be
classified as a Collector Rural Road. Rural Roadways may be utilized in
the RS district which are self-contained and having lots no less than ½
acre in size.

Right-of-Way Width: 60 feet Local Rural Residential Road
Typical Travel Lanes: 2 lanes

Right-of-Way Width: 70 feet Collector Rural Residential Road
Typical Travel Lanes: 2 lanes

Elko Roadway Classification

The following provides the functional classifications for roadways within
the City of Elko based on existing street character and function:

Interstates and Interstate Interchanges

 Interstate 80 (I-80)
 Exit 298 (Idaho Street Interchange)
 Exit 301 (Mountain City Highway Interchange)
 Exit 303 (Jennings Way Interchange)

Principal Arterials/Other NDOT Roadways

 Lamoille Highway (State Route-SR 227)
 Mountain City Highway (SR 225)

Major Arterials

 5th Street, between Idaho Street and Lamoille Highway (SR 227)
 12th Street, between Idaho Street and Lamoille Highway (SR 227)
 Idaho Street
 Silver Street, Idaho Street to 5th Street

Minor Arterials

 5th Street, north of Idaho Street
 12th Street Extension (future)
 Cattle Drive, south of Mountain City Highway (SR 225) (future)
 College Avenue – 12th Street to Idaho Street
 Errecart Boulevard, between Silver Street and Bullion Road

(classification is Major Arterial once roadway is connected)
 Errecart Boulevard, west of Lamoille Highway (SR 227)

(classification is Major Arterial once roadway is connected)
 Jennings Way, northeast of Mountain City Highway (SR 225)

(classification is Major Arterial once roadway is connected)
 Jennings Way, northwest of Idaho Street (classification is Major

Arterial once roadway is connected)



__________________________________________________________________________ Transportation

Transportation page 7

 Powder House Road
 Powder House Road Extension (future)
 Ruby Vista Drive
 Silver Street, between 5th Street and 12th Street
 Spruce Road
 Spruce Road Extension (future)

Commercial/Industrial Collectors

 8th Street, between Elm Street and Silver Street
 9th Street
 12th Street, between College Avenue and Idaho Street
 13th Street
 14th Street
 30th Street
 Airport Road Extension (future)
 Aspen Way, between Mountain City Highway (SR 225) and

Westwood Drive
 Chris Avenue
 Colt Drive
 College Avenue – 9th Street to 12th Street
 College Parkway
 Commercial Street
 D Street
 Elm Street
 Fairground Road
 Front Street
 Golf Course Drive
 Last Chance Road
 Manzanita Lane
 Kittridge Canyon Road, between Paradise Drive and Idaho Street
 Pinion Road
 Railroad Street
 Silver Street, east of 12th Street
 Statice Street (Ruby Vista Drive to Delaware Street)Stitzel Road,

between Colt Way and Last Chance
 Water Street
 West Sage Street
 Wildwood Way, between Lamoille Highway (SR 227) and Stitzel

Road

Residential Collectors

 1st Street, south of Silver Street
 2nd Street
 3rd Street
 Argent Avenue
 Bluffs Avenue
 Bullion Road – Wilson Avenue
 Cattle Drive, north of Mountain City Highway (SR 255) (future)
 Cedar Street, between Fir Street and 6th Street
 Cedar Street, Mountain City Highway to Fir Street and 6th Street to

Idaho Street
 Clarkson Drive
 Connolly Drive
 Copper Street



Id
ah

o 
St

re
et

West Id
aho Street

Bullio
n Road

La
st

 C
hance

 R
oad

Mountain City Highway

N
orth 5th Street

S
u

n
d

a
n

ce
 D

ri
ve

W
ate

r S
tr

eet

Spru
ce R

oad

Ruby 
Vis

ta
 D

riv
e

Silv
er S

tr
eet

M
anza

nita
 D

riv
e

L
a

m
o

ille
 H

ig
hw

ay

Pin
io

n R
oad

Sagecrest Drive

C
o

n
n

o
ll

y 
D

ri
ve

Country
 C

lu
b D

r

Indian View Heights Drive

 

A
rg

en
t A

ve
nue

A
sp

en
 W

ay

C
a

n
yo

n
 D

ri
ve

Railr
oad S

tr
eet

G
olf C

ourse RoadJe
n

n
in

g
s 

W
a

y

C
re

st
v

ie
w

 D
ri

ve

12th Street

P
ra

tt
 D

ri
ve

Cedar S
tr

eet

Chris Aven u e

D
e

la
w

a
re

 D
ri

ve

C
o

lt
 D

ri
ve

Po
w

d
er

 H
o

u
se

 R
o

ad

Montrose Ln

East Jennings W
ay

Colle
ge A

ve
nue

Cla
rk

so
n D

riv
e

Erre
cart 

Boule
vard

Chilton Circle

Bluffs Avenue

Romeo Way

O
p

a
l D

ri
ve

Copper Street

E
l A

rm
u

th
 D

ri
ve

Ruby View Drive

13th Street

30th Street

W
ils

on A
ve

In
dust

ria
l W

ay

W
e

st
 S

a
g

e
 S

tr
e

e
t

Elm
 S

tr
eet

2nd Street

8th Street

South 9th Street

College
Parkway

Fa
irg

ro
und R

oad

5th Street

Mittry Avenue
Stitzel Road

0 0.2 0.4 0.6 0.80.1

Miles

°

Map Legend

Roadway Functional Classification

Interstate

Major Arterial

Minor Arterial

NDOT Roadway

Collector

Regional Roadway

227

227

225

§̈¦80

§̈¦80

225

EXISTING FUNCTIONAL CLASSIFICATION
ATLAS Map 11.



!C
!C

!C

!U

!U

!C

!C
!C

!C

!U

!U

!U

!U

!U

!U

!U

!U
!U

!U

!C

!C

!C

jk¬

jk¬

!C 

 

Id
a
h
o
 S

tr
e
e
t

West Id
aho Street

Bullio
n R

oad

La
st

 C
ha

nc
e 

R
oa

d

Mountain City Highway

N
orth 5th S

treet

S
u

n
d

a
n

c
e

 D
ri

v
e

W
at

er
 S

tre
et

Spr
uce

 R
oa

d

M
a
n
za

n
ita

 L
a
n
e

R
ub

y 
V
is

ta
 D

riv
e

S
ilv

er
 S

tre
et

M
an

za
ni

ta
 D

riv
e

L
a

m
o

ille
H

ighw
a
y

Pin
io
n 

R
oa

d

Sagecrest Drive

C
o

n
n

o
lly

 D
ri

v
e

Country
 C

lu
b D

r

Indian View Heights Drive

 

A
rg

e
n
tA

ve
nu

e

A
sp

e
n
 W

a
y

C
a

n
y
o

n
 D

ri
v
e

R
ai

lro
ad

 S
tre

et

G
o
lf C

ourse R
oadJ

e
n

n
in

g
s
 W

a
y

C
re

s
tv

ie
w

 D
ri

v
e

12th Street

P
ra

tt
 D

ri
v
e

C
ed

ar
 S

tr
ee

t

Chris Aven ue

D
e

la
w

a
re

 D
ri

v
e

C
o

lt
 D

ri
v
e

P
o
w

d
e
r 

H
o
u
se

 R
o
a
d

Montrose Ln

E
ast Jennings W

ay

C
ol

le
ge

 A
ve

nu
e

C
la

rk
so

n 
D
riv

e

Erre
ca

rt 
Boule

va
rd

Chilton Circle

Bluffs Avenue

Romeo Way

O
p

a
l 
D

ri
v
e

Copper Street

E
l A

rm
u

th
 D

ri
v
e

Ruby View Drive

13th Street

30th Street

W
ils

on
 A

ve

In
du

st
ria

l W
ay

W
e
s
t 
S

a
g

e
 S

tr
e
e
t

E
lm

 S
tre

et

2nd Street

8th Street

South 9th Street

College
Parkway

Fa
irg

ro
un

d 
R
oa

d

5th Street

Mittry Avenue

S
titzel R

o
ad

Airp
or

t R
d.

 E
xt

ens
io

n

9
th

 S
t. E

x
te

n
s
io

n

Front St. Extens io
n

Jennings Way Extension

C
a
tt
le

 D
r.

S
p

ru
c
e

 R
d

. 
E

x
te

n
s
io

n

Errecart Blvd Extension

1
2

th
 S

tre
e

t E
x
te

n
s
io

n

P
in

io
n

 R
d

. E
x
te

n
s
io

n

Statice St

TRANSPORTATION PLANNING

0 0.15 0.3 0.45 0.60.075

Miles

°

Future Roadway Network

Map Legend

Future Improvements

!U  Intersection Improvements

jk¬ Grade Separated Interchange

!C Install Traffic Control Device

Elko_Planned

Planned Roadway Classsification

Major Arterial

Minor Arterial

Collector

Roadway Functional Classification

Interstate

Major Arterial

Minor Arterial

NDOT Roadway

Collector

Note: 

Roadway alignments are conceptual.

227

227

225

§̈¦80

§̈¦80

225

Statice: Ruby Vista Drive to west
-Collector
Ruby Vista: Statice to NYTC
-Minor Arterial
Cattle Drive: Mountain City Hwy. to Exit 298
-Minor Arterial
-Cattel Drive: Mountain City Hwy to 5th St
-Collector
9th St: Lamoille Hwy to Errecart Blvd
-Collector
Front St: A St. to Errecart Blvd
-Collector
Airport Road: W. Idaho St to Mountain City Hwy
-Collector

Future Roads_________________________

ATLAS MAP 12

Date Printed 11/27/2017

Regional Roadway



Agenda Item # I.B.2  

Created on 09/27/2016  Planning Commission Action Sheet 

Elko City Planning Commission 
Agenda Action Sheet 

 

1. Title: Election of officers, and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION 

 

2. Meeting Date: January 7, 2020 

 

3. Agenda Category: MISCELLANEOUS ITEMS, PETITIONS, AND COMMUNICATIONS 

 

4. Time Required: 10 Minutes 

 

5. Background Information:  Pursuant to Section 3-4-3 A. of the City Code, the Planning 

Commission shall elect a Chairperson, Vice-Chairperson and Secretary in January 

every year.  
 

6. Business Impact Statement: Not Required 

 

7. Supplemental Agenda Information: 

 

8. Recommended Motion:  

 

9. Findings: 

 

10. Prepared By: Cathy Laughlin, City Planner 

 

11. Agenda Distribution:  



Agenda Item # I.B.3 

Created on 1/23/2017  Planning Commission Action Sheet 

Elko City Planning Commission 
Agenda Action Sheet 

 

1. Review, consideration, and possible action to develop the Calendar Year 2020 

Planning Commission Annual Work Program, and matters related thereto. FOR 

POSSIBLE ACTION 

 

2. Meeting Date:  January 7, 2020 

 

3. Agenda Category: MISCELLANEOUS ITEMS, PETITIONS, AND COMMUNICATIONS 

 

4. Time Required: 10 Minutes 

 

5. Background Information:  Each year the Planning Commission reviews the Annual 

Work Program. The work program gives the Planning Commission direction on 

various issues to address throughout the year. 
 

6. Business Impact Statement: Not Required 

 

7. Supplemental Agenda Information: 2020 Work Program 

 

8. Recommended Motion: Pleasure of the Planning Commission 

 

9. Findings: 

 

10. Prepared By: Cathy Laughlin, City Planner 

 

11. Agenda Distribution:  



ITEM START DATE
PROJECTED

COMPLETION
ACTUAL

COMPLETION

* Repeal and Replace Sign Ordinance Feb-19 October
* Review Zoning for RMH districts, revise map April September

* Revise P & Z applications / Zoning Code Amendment to reflect changes October 2017 August
* Master Plan Amendment for misc. revisions January March

ONGOING PROJECTS
Planning Commission training (General conduct, Ethics, NRS, Open meeting
law) ongoing

Elko Planning Commission 2020 Work Program


































